
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 5 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Agenda 
June 5, 2014 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
City Council Regular Meeting &  

Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop 6:00 PM 
June 5, 2014 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 
 

Notice is hereby given that a City Council Regular Meeting & Fire Rescue 
Workshop of the City Council of the City of Lucas will be held on Thursday, 
June 5, 2014.  The meeting will begin at 6:00 PM at the Lucas City Hall, 665 
Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, at which time the following agenda will be 
discussed. 

Agenda 

Call to Order 
 
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Determination of Quorum 
Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Regular Agenda 
1) City Secretary will administer the Oaths of Office to 

Councilmember(s) Millsap and Olk. 
 
2) Discuss and consider the appointment of a Mayor Pro Tem to serve 

for a period of one year, term ending May 31, 2015. 

Citizens’ Input 
At this time citizens who have pre-registered by filling out a “Request to Speak” sheet and have 
submitted the sheet to the City Secretary before the call to order will be allowed to speak on any 
matter other than personnel matters or matters under litigation, for a length of time not to exceed 
three minutes. No Council action or discussion may take place on a matter until such matter has 
been placed on a future agenda and posted in accordance with law. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 5 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Agenda 
June 5, 2014 

3) Citizens’ Input. 

Community Interest 

4) Items of Community Interest. 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, 
conservation efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to 
the City of Lucas. [Fisher/Foerster] 

Consent Agenda 
The Consent Agenda is used to increase the efficiency of time. All items listed 
under the Consent Agenda may be considered by a single motion, second and 
passage by a majority vote of the Council present at the time of consideration. Any 
member of Council may remove an item from the Consent Agenda prior to a 
motion to act upon the agenda. 
              

5) Consent and Approve: 

a) The minutes from the May 15, 2014 City Council Regular and 
the May 17, 2014 City Council Workshop meetings. [Wingo] 

b) The Pave-It, Inc. contract for construction of the W. Lucas 
Road fire station driveway in the amount of $15,373.59 and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement with a twenty 
percent (20%) contingency in the amount of $3,074.72 for a 
total of $18,448.31. [Foerster] 

Regular Agenda (Continued) 

6) Discuss and consider the approval of Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 
amending the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances by amending 
Chapter 5 titled “Fire Prevention and Protecting” by amending Article 
5.03 “Fire Code” by amending Section 3301.1.3 of the International 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 5 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Agenda 
June 5, 2014 

Fire Code 2003 Edition to prohibit the use of fireworks within 5,000 
feet outside the City Limits of the City of Lucas. [Hilbourn] 

7) Discuss and consider the approval of an application for a preliminary 
plat for a parcel of land situated in ABS A0349 John Gray Survey, 
Tract 10, being a 30.6018± acres, located at the southwest corner of 
the intersection of Highland Drive and Stinson Road. [Estates at 
Stinson Highlands] [Hilbourn] 

8) Discuss and consider any and all future elections for the City of Lucas 
to be conducted by Collin County Elections Administration. [Wingo] 

Fire Rescue Workshop 
 

9) Discuss and Consider items during the Fire Rescue Workshop to 
include the following: 

a) Consider defining the service area for the Lucas Fire Department 
and determine whether to provide fire suppression services, 
emergency medical services or both to the following areas: 
 All areas with the Fire District as established by Collin 

County 
 All areas within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction 
 Seis Lagos Utility District (including the Brockdale 

development) 
 Inspiration Utility District 
 

b) Consider the applicability of creating a Department of Public 
Safety. 

 
c) Consider the current staffing levels including both full-time and 

volunteer. 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 5 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Agenda 
June 5, 2014 

d) Consider the apparatus, vehicles and major equipment 
assessment and replacement schedule. 

 
e) Consider future facilities. 
 
f) Consider dispatch and communications. 
 
g) Consider the current mutual aid agreements and/or service 

agreements: 
 Agreement for the Provision of Firefighting and Fire 

Protection Services with Collin County effective October 
2013 with automatic renewal for successive one year terms 
with budgeted revenue of $36,000 for fiscal year 13/14. 

 Interjurisdictional Mutual Aid Agreement effective on the 
date of adoption (August 2008) and automatically renews for 
one year terms. 

 Interlocal Automatic Mutual Aid Agreement with the Town 
of Fairview and the City of Parker executed September 2008 
and automatically renews for one year terms. 

 Memorandum of Understanding Agreement for Assistance 
Between Lucas and Murphy Fire Departments dated 
February 1, 2014 

 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Seis Lagos Utility 
District executed in November 2009 and automatically 
renews for one year terms with budgeted revenue of 
$126,514 for fiscal year 13/14. 

10) Adjournment. 

As authorized by Section 551.071 (2) of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice 
from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 5 of 5 
City Council Regular & Lucas Fire Rescue Workshop Agenda 
June 5, 2014 

Approval 

Approved by: Mayor Rebecca Mark, May 30, 2014. 

Certification 

I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the 
bulletin board at Lucas City Hall by 5:00 p.m. on or before Friday, May 
30, 2014, as required in accordance with Government Code §551.041. 

 

____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 

This building is wheelchair accessible. Any requests for sign interpretive services or other 
special requests for assistance of the hearing impaired must be made 48 hours in advance 
of the meeting. To make such arrangements, please call 972-727-8999 or email 
secretary@lucastexas.us. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
JUNE 5, 2014 

LUCAS CITY COUNCIL  

Meeting Date June 5, 2014 

AGENDA ITEM:  
 Call to Order  
 Roll Call      Present  Absent 

Mayor Rebecca Mark              

Seat 1 CM Wayne Millsap           

Seat 2 CM Jim Olk            

Seat 3 CM Steve Duke              

Seat 4 CM Philip Lawrence             

Seat 5 CM Debbie Fisher             

Seat 6 MPT Kathleen Peele           

 

 Determination of Quorum 
 Reminder to silence cell phones 
 Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Informational Purposes 

 

City Manager Joni Clarke     

City Secretary Kathy Wingo      

Public Works Director Stanton Foerster    

Finance Director Liz Exum     

Fire Chief Jim Kitchens        

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City Attorney Joe Gorfida, Jr.      

Administrative Assistant Jennifer Faircloth   

   

    

 



Item No. 01 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
City Secretary will administer the Oaths of Office to Councilmember(s) Millsap 
and Olk. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 



Item No. 02 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider the appointment of a Mayor Pro Tem to serve for a period of 
one year, term ending May 31, 2015. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 



Item No. 03 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Citizen’s Input. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 



Item No. 04 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Items of Community Interest: 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, 
conservation efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to the City 
of Lucas. [Fisher/Foerster] 

 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 



Item No. 05a 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Consent and approve the minutes from the May 15, 2014 City Council Regular and 
the May 17, 2014 City Council Workshop meetings. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Minutes from the May 15, 2014 City Council meeting. 
2. Minutes from the May 17, 2014 City Council Workshop meeting. 

 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

City Council Meeting 7:00 PM 
May 15, 2014 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present or (Absent): 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark    Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap   Councilmember Jim Olk 
Councilmember Steve Duke   Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
 
Staff Present: 
 
City Manager Joni Clarke   City Secretary Kathy Wingo 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida   Battalion Chief Craig Zale 
Public Works Director Stanton Foerster Finance Director Liz Exum 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
It was determined that a Quorum was present. 
Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence cell phones. 
Collin County Commissioner Cheryl Williams led everyone in saying the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

Citizens’ Input 

1) Citizens’ Input. 

There was no one present who wished to speak during the Citizens’ input. 

Community Interest 

2) Items of Community Interest. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

a) Discussion and update regarding the drought contingency plan, conservation 
efforts and watering restrictions as it pertains to the City of Lucas. 
[Fisher/Foerster] 

Councilmember Fisher stated that the City remains under the twice a month 
water restrictions, Stage 3.  Even with the recent rainfall, the lake level only 
raised a few inches. 

b) Presentation of the Texas Comptroller Leadership Circle Platinum Member 
award by Mayor Rebecca Mark to Finance Director Liz Exum. [Mark] 

The City of Lucas has been awarded leadership awards for Financial 
Transparency by the State Comptroller’s Office for the last four years.  In 
2014, the Texas Comptroller Leadership Circle introduced the Platinum 
Leadership Award.  The City of Lucas is honored to be among the first to 
receive this prestigious award.  Mayor Rebecca Mark presented the Texas 
Comptroller Leadership Circle Platinum Member award to Finance Director 
Liz Exum.  Mayor Mark went on to congratulate Ms. Exum for a job well 
done by the Finance Department in obtaining this award. 

Regular Agenda 

3) Discuss and consider approval of a development agreement between the City of 
Lucas and the Brockdale Community, LLC regarding the funding mechanism to 
fund future road improvements to Brockdale Park Road. [Clarke] 

The City has the right to enter into an agreement with Brockdale Community 
LLC through Section 212.172 of the Texas Local Government Code.  Time is 
of the essence, two permits have been reviewed and will be ready for pick-up 
on May 16th, a third is in the review process.  This development agreement 
would assess $2,200 per lot and with some 206 lots, the assessment would 
generate $453,200 for future road repairs. 

See the depiction(s) on the following page for Brockdale Park Road 
Improvements: 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

 

 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

Collin County has agreed to be a partner in addressing the condition of the 
Brockale Park Road.  Staff and Brockdale Community LLC have worked 
diligently to come to an agreement that is beneficial to both parties, that 
addresses most of the concerns raised by the Council.  Staff is recommending 
that Council approve this agreement as presented. 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher ask for clarification of this agreement and what 
was presented previously.  City Attorney Joe Gorfida stated that this 
mechanism runs with the land and allows for the city to do business in the ETJ.  
If the developer does not pay the fee, the city would be able to go after the 
developer for the fee. 

The $2,200 per lot fee is designated for roadway maintenance, it is not an 
impact fee. 

Councilmember Jim Olk asked if there should be money remaining, after the 
reconstruction in 2018, can it be retained for future maintenance.  The answer 
was yes. 

The total contribution by Brockdale Community LLC, when all is said and 
done, will be approximately $609,000.  This includes a $150,000 contribution, 
payable in two installments of $75,000, which will be sent to Collin County for 
immediate repairs. 

There is very little traffic on this road by the citizens of Lucas, roughly 20 
residents live along this road. 

The development will eventually be annexed into Seis Lagos and become a part 
of the SLUD. 

Councilmember Wayne Millsap feels that this agreement addresses the roadway 
up to the 50 marker.  The roadway past 70 marker is owned 50/50 by the city 
and Seis Lagos.  It was suggested to change the agreement to read that repairs 
up to 70 marker would be included and a later discussion would occur with Seis 
Lagos. 

Portions of Article 2 will be changed to read…….To the extent funds remain 
after funding the Road Improvements between Station 0+00 and Station 50+00, 
revenue collected pursuant to this paragraph shall be used to fund the Road 
Improvements between Station 50+00 and Station 70+00, as shown on Exhibit 
C, if such funds are sufficient to fund such Road Improvements….. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 5 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

MOTION:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap made Motion to approve a 
development agreement between the City of Lucas and the 
Brockdale Community, LLC regarding the funding mechanism to 
fund future road improvements to Brockdale Park Road, with the 
changes as discussed.  Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

4) Presentation by Collin County Fire Marshal Jason Browning regarding the 
Fourth of July activities located in the vicinity of Lake Lavon as it relates to the 
sale and use of fireworks and the impact on public safety.  Discussion and 
consideration by the Lucas City Council regarding the regulation of said 
activity to enhance public safety and the possible implementation of a traffic 
plan as well as the coordination and allocation of resources by the City of Lucas 
to assist agencies involved in oversight of said activities. [Peele] 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 6 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

Timeline of Events: 

• 3/31/14 Meeting with Burch Fireworks and Mr. Big’s Fireworks.  Draft 
of public safety plan submitted.  Both stands agreed to submit joint 
safety plan.  Draft declared 2500 estimated customers.  Advised that 
2500 persons would qualify for a mass gatherings permit. 

• 4/7/14 Second public safety plan submitted.  Joint plan between both 
stands.  Declared 2500 estimated customers.  Sent plan to Mark 
Sanderson, Jon Kleinheksel, Sgt. Bonilla and Barry Heard for review. 

• 4/22/14 Meeting with Jason Browning, Jon Kleinheksel, Mark 
Sanderson, Sgt. Bonilla (TXDPS) and Barry Heard (TXDOT) to review 
public safety plan. 

• 4/25/14 Notice sent denying public safety plan. 
• 5/9/14 Revised public safety plans submitted.  Burch Fireworks and Mr. 

Big’s Fireworks submitted independent plans.  Both plans state 
“Although it is not expected, but as assurance that we will not fall under 
the mass gatherings act we will turn patrons away from our facility if 
we exceed 2400 people.” 

Comments from meeting to review Safety Plan: 

 Sheriff’s Department– Texas traffic laws and the Transportation Code 
prohibit parking and stopping in certain places.  Public and private 
driveways and parking on a bridge are examples of places it is 
prohibited.  The affected area of FM 3286 has both bridges and 
driveways that are blocked by the traffic that lines up along the 
roadway during the event.  With the roadway blocked and traffic at a 
standstill those vehicles cannot yield the right of way for emergency 
traffic.  Emergency traffic cannot access the areas around 3286.  We 
have had traffic accidents, fires, medical emergencies and assaults in 
the past that emergency personnel were either seriously hampered or 
could not gain access to the call.  If the event is allowed the only 
recourse when the roadway is determined to be unsafe or issues arise is 
to place barricades at 1378 and 546 to prevent incoming traffic and 
allow such time for outgoing traffic to clear the roadway before the 
roadway can be reopened.  If traffic is not diverted to a major road 
traffic problems will occur on county roads. 

 Public Works – Resources are all encompassing for department for 
duration of event.  One week prior barricades are obtained from 
TXDOT and disbursed by personnel.  Personnel continue to relocate 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 7 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

barricades through the evening of July 4.  Personnel have assisted Fire 
Department with the extinguishment of fires.  Trash clean up has taken 
up to 2 days. 

• Texas Department of Public Safety – Based on roadway and available 
resources there is not a practical way to manage the amount of traffic on 
the roadway.  If traffic blocks roadway only practical solution is to shut 
down the road and divert incoming traffic until roadway clears. 

• Texas Department of Transportation – No resources to assist with 
roadway.  Cannot shut down TXDOT road for event without permit.  
Permit cannot be obtained by private individual.  Roadway must not be 
obstructed and remain clear.  In four counties they have been associated 
with they have no knowledge of any event like this. 

• Fire Marshal – Fire and EMS response cannot be made in timely 
manner due to traffic in roadway being unmanageable.  Fire 
Department staged on scene could not access reported brush fire.  Fire 
Marshal personnel enroute to call outside of Lucas could not pass when 
traveling south from Princeton.  Had to backtrack to Princeton and 
come in through Wylie to get to call.  Wildland/Urban interface major 
concern with dry conditions. 

• American Medical Response – could not attend meeting but commented 
on requirements to manage EMS.  One fully staffed MICU staged on 
scene.  One additional Paramedic/EMT team staged at scene.  Burns 
and eye wash most common.  Anticipate one or two transports for 
duration of event.  Access to nearest hospital a concern given location, 
time to transport and time back to location. 

There was a rather lengthy discussion on past years and problems associated 
with said events.  Collin County Fire Marshal Jason Browning stated that his 
office plans to block the roadway, limiting access to the area on July 4th.  
County Commissioner Cheryl Williams stated that the county would no longer 
be expending unbudgeted resources and manpower to manage these types of 
events. 

The Council discussed a proposed extension of the city’s nuisance ordinance 
that would include prohibit the sale and setting-off of the fireworks. 

The City Manager and Staff will do further research into the matter, along with 
the City Attorney, and bring back recommendations on the June 5th meeting 
agenda. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 8 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

5) Presentation by Director Erich Neupert and Board Chair Mary Schoeffel from 
the Blackland Prairie Raptor Center.  Discussion and consideration by the 
Lucas City Council regarding the Blackland Prairie Raptor Center’s goals and 
objectives and how the City of Lucas can support the efforts of this 
organization. [Millsap] 

  

 

The Blackland Prairie Raptor Center is a 501(c) (3) non-profit Texas 
corporation founded in 2004.  Their main focus is on raptor environmental 
programs and are fully permitted by state and federal authorities with 
jurisdiction.  The Blackland Prairie Raptor Center is dedicated to environmental 
preservation through public education and the conservation of birds of prey and 
wildlife in their natural habitat. 

The Blackland Prairie Raptor Center (BPRC) is located at US Army Corps of 
Engineers’ (USACE) Brockdale Park on Lake Lavon.  There is some 66 acres 
including 14 acres of a developed public use area and 52 acres that will 
preserve native tallgrass prairie and woodlands, in keeping with the values of 
the BPRC and USACE. 

The Blackland Prairie Raptor Center is committed to public education: 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 9 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

• Providing outreach to public, private and home school children. 

• Presenting programs and displays at events and festivals. 

• On-site programming for schools, home school groups, scouts and other 
organizations. 

In 2013, the center had more than 30,000 visitors. 

The BPRC has begun restoring native prairie to: 

• Provide environmental education about the most endangered habitat in 
North America Texas Blackland Prairie. 

• Allow visitors to walk interpretive trails in the restored area. 

• Give local schools the unique ability to study prairie habit. 

• Preserve for future generations to enjoy. 

There are plans to open a raptor rehabilitation hospital in the near future capable 
of providing facilities for complete care from intake through final flight testing.  
This would also give the public a place to bring injured, sick and orphaned birds 
of prey.  The building would have the ability to handle more than 700 patients 
per year, making it one of the largest raptor rehabilitation centers in the country. 

Texas Blackland Prairie once covered 16 million acres from central Texas to 
the Red River.  Only a few thousand acres remain among small plots 
throughout the region.  Less than 0.1% remains making this tallgrass prairie the 
most endangered large ecosystem in North America.  Blackland Prairie Raptor 
Center has remnant prairie on its property and is working with citizens and local 
organizations to restore it to its original state for all to study and appreciate.  
Drought-tolerate, heat-resistant plants are examples of beneficial flora.  

The BPRC is open to the public the first Saturday of every month with different 
themes including raptors, water, fire and prairie.  In June the Rods n’ Raptors 
Kids’ Fishing Derby will be taking place and is a lot of fun for the whole 
family. 

Volunteer opportunities include gardening, prairie restoration, raptor care, and 
raptor education. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 10 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

Behind the scenes construction is ongoing for the rehabilitation cages and the 
hospital.  There is a Capital Campaign to raise funds to begin the raptor 
rehabilitation, total funds needed is $260,000.  Due to federal requirements, this 
area is close to the public view. 

The future of the Blackland Prairie Raptor Center includes a permanent 
education building; permanent raptor hospital; interpretive trails through the 
Blackland Prairie; demonstration gardens of native plants and open to the public 
6 days a week. 

 

To learn more about the Blackland Prairie Raptor Center be sure to visit their 
website:  www.bpraptorcenter.org  

6) Discuss and consider the approval of the minutes from the May 1, 2014 City 
Council Regular meeting. [Wingo] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 11 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve the minutes 
from the May 1, 2014 City Council Regular meeting.  
Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  Motion 
carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

7) Discuss and consider the approval of Resolution # R-2014-05-00419 of the 
City Council of the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas, canvassing and 
declaring the results of the Special Election of the City of Lucas  held on May 
10, 2014, for the purpose of submitting propositions to the qualified voters of 
the city for the creation of the City of Lucas fire, control, prevention, and 
emergency medical services district dedicated to fire safety and emergency 
medical services programs and the adoption of an additional sales and use tax 
within the city at the rate of one-half of one percent; the then current mayor and 
six (6) councilmembers shall serve as board of directors of the district; and 
providing for an effective date. [Wingo] 

The total number of citizens who voted in this election was 563.  The unofficial 
results of the election are as follows: 

Proposition # 1: The Creation of the City of Lucas fire, control, prevention, and 
Emergency Medical Services District dedicated to fire safety and emergency 
medical services programs and the adoption of a proposed local sales and use 
tax at the rate of one-half of one percent.  

FOR  420  AGAINST  142 

Proposition # 2:  The then current Mayor and six (6) council members shall 
serve as board of directors of the district.  

FOR  425  AGAINST  130 

Once the election results are submitted to the State Comptroller, the local sales 
and use tax would go to 8.25% on October 1, 2014, providing that there are no 
delays with the State Comptroller’s Office. 

MOTION: Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to approve Resolution # 
R-2014-05-00419 of the City Council of the City of Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas, canvassing and declaring the results of the Special 
Election of the City of Lucas  held on May 10, 2014, for the 
purpose of submitting propositions to the qualified voters of the city 
for the creation of the City of Lucas fire, control, prevention, and 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 12 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

emergency medical services district dedicated to fire safety and 
emergency medical services programs and the adoption of an 
additional sales and use tax within the city at the rate of one-half of 
one percent; the then current mayor and six (6) councilmembers 
shall serve as board of directors of the district; and providing for an 
effective date.  Councilmember Philip Lawrence seconded the 
Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

8) Discuss and consider the purchase of an INCODE Purchasing Module. [Exum] 

The Finance Department has recently added a purchasing function.  In order to 
properly encumber and account for City purchases, we would like to purchase 
the INCODE Purchasing Module.  Tyler’s INCODE Purchase Order system 
manages, monitors, and maintains requisitions and encumbrances. This module 
has many benefits: allows administrators to define approval levels, distributes 
purchase orders to multiple funds and accounts, supports recurring purchase 
orders, provides validation of available budget at the individual account level 
during requisition, generates multiple standard reports, and interfaces with 
INCODE General Ledger and Accounts Payable. 

The cost for the module includes: $4,675 for license fees, $1,500 for set up and 
training, and $1,169 for annual maintenance.  The impact to FY 13-14 would be 
a total of $7,344.  For future years, the annual cost would be $1,169 for 
maintenance.  Through the mid-year budget review process, we are able to 
absorb the costs of this new module through account adjustments taken in 
various departments in the General Fund. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to approve the 
purchase of an INCODE Purchasing Module.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Kathleen Peele seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

9) Discuss and consider establishing a comprehensive City of Lucas Purchasing 
Policy and Procedures manual. [Clarke] 

The City of Lucas has been operating under the guidelines for governmental 
purchasing using the State of Texas requirements.  The City is taking a three 
pronged approach to create a comprehensive system to ensure compliance with 
best practices for the acquisitions of goods and services and to comply with all 
laws regulating municipal purchasing.  The first component of this purchasing 
system was approved at the City Council meeting on April 17, 2014 when the 
City Council took action to reclassification of part-time Court Clerk (.50 FTE) 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 13 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

and create a part-time Purchasing Coordinator (.50 FTE) position for the 
formation of a full-time Purchasing Coordinator/Finance Assistant position.  
This staff position will be responsible for ensuring the compliance with the 
proposed purchasing policy.  This policy will serve as the second component in 
creating a foundation for the proper administration of procurement activities on 
behalf of the City. 

MOTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele made a Motion to accept and 
approve the comprehensive City of Lucas Purchasing Policy and 
Procedures manual.  Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the 
Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

10) Discuss and consider a unilateral annexation of 1101 W. Lucas Rd, Lucas, 
Texas situated in ABS A0428 Ann S. Hurt Survey, Tract 2, and is a 20 acre 
parcel of land; Tract 13 is a ten acre parcel of land. This property is more 
commonly known as Willow Springs Middle School. [Hilbourn] 

Staff has brought forward a request to the City Council tonight for 
consideration of annexing Willow Springs Middle School, located on West 
Lucas Road. 

Willow Springs Middle School is currently located in the City’s ETJ and is 
surrounded on all four sides by the city limits of Lucas.  Council previously 
directed Staff to negotiate a contract for ambulance services.  Staff has met with 
Lovejoy ISD and the East Texas Coalition.  East Texas Coalition feels they are 
providing adequate services to the area and see no reason to disrupt what is in 
place currently. 

Staff is recommending that Council consider starting the annexation process so 
that is completed prior to the start of school in August, 2014. 

Councilmember Debbie Fisher would like to have the school come into the city 
via a voluntary annexation application. 

Councilmember Steve Duke that the annexation is necessary so as to provide 
EMS to the school. 

Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele states it is the school’s responsibility to ask for 
annexation to be covered by the ambulance service. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 14 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

Councilmember Philip Lawrence agrees with the comments that have been 
made by council.  This annexation is the right thing to do. 

Councilmember Wayne Millsap stated the ultimate effect on the process 
whether or not the annexation is done unilaterally or by a request made by the 
school is the same.  Future improvements or zonings by the school would have 
to be done to the city’s requirements. 

Councilmember Jim Olk stated that City Manager Joni Clarke could request a 
letter of support from the Lovejoy ISD School Board concerning the annexation 
of the school. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark says there is time to work this by August if the city 
moves forward now.   

MOTION: Councilmember Jim Olk made a Motion to start the unilateral 
annexation process of 1101 W. Lucas Rd, Lucas, Texas situated in 
ABS A0428 Ann S. Hurt Survey, Tract 2, and is a 20 acre parcel of 
land; Tract 13 is a ten acre parcel of land. This property is more 
commonly known as Willow Springs Middle School and ask for an 
application of voluntary annexation or a letter of support of the 
unilateral annexation.  Councilmember Philip Lawrence seconded 
the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

11) Discuss and consider approval of the APAC Road Repair Agreement in the 
amount of $459,884 and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement. 
[Foerster] 

Council is being asked to consider an agreement with APAC for road repairs, 
the actual cost is $838 higher than the amount listed in the agenda item.  The 
new amount is $460,722. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to approve the 
APAC Road Repair Agreement in the amount not to exceed 
$460,722 and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement.  
Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  Motion 
carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

12) Discuss and consider amending the FY13-14 budget to include funding for the 
Estates Parkway construction between Angel Parkway and Lovejoy High 
School. [Foerster] 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 15 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

Mayor Rebecca Mark recused herself from this discussion due to the location of 
her personal residence.  Mayor Mark turned the meeting over to the Mayor Pro 
Tem and left the room.  Mayor Mark completed an Affidavit of Conflict of 
Interest which becomes a part of these minutes. 

The monies for this item would come from road impact fees, leaving 
approximately $200K in the impact fee fund for other roadway improvements.  
There was some concern using such a large amount of the impact fees on such a 
small amount of roadway.  Councilmember Debbie Fisher pointed out that this 
is not a city roadway but a state roadway. 

Councilmember Wayne Millsap stated that there is a balance, however, the state 
has agreed to reconstruct the bridge on Country Club.  Council has approved 
$13,000 to acquire right-of-way to move the city waterline in anticipation of the 
reconstruction of the bridge project. 

There are currently 12 residential developments in various stages of the process 
that could bring in future impact fees.  These could replenish the impact fee 
funds used. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to approve $450K 
using road impact fees for the Estates Parkway construction 
between Angel Parkway and Lovejoy High School.  
Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  
Vote: 6-0. 

Mayor Rebecca Mark rejoined the meeting. 

13) Discuss and consider amending the FY13-14 budget to include funding for a 
professional service contract with BW2 Engineers to create an official city map 
as required by state law and the Lucas Charter and allow the city manager to 
execute an agreement to be drafted by the City Attorney in amount not to 
exceed $30,000 for the creating of the Official City Map by BW2 Engineers. 
[Foerster] 

Sections 1.02 and 2.04(13) of the Lucas Charter call for the establishment of 
and need for an official City map.  The City currently maintains a pictorial 
representation of the city limits, but not a metes and bounds description of the 
city limits. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 16 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

MOTION:  Councilmember Debbie Fisher made a Motion to amend the FY13-
14 budget to include funding for a professional service contract 
with BW2 Engineers to create an official city map as required by 
state law and the Lucas Charter and allow the city manager to 
execute an agreement to be drafted by the City Attorney in amount 
not to exceed $30,000 for the creating of the Official City Map by 
BW2 Engineers and to authorize the city manager to execute the 
agreement with the consent of the legal counsel.  Councilmember 
Jim Olk seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

14) Discuss and consider amending the FY13-14 budget to include funding for the 
Osage six-inch waterline construction. [Foerster] 

In August 2012, the properties on the south side of Osage Lane were annexed 
into the City of Lucas.  In keeping with state law, staff is pursuing water 
delivery before the August 2015 deadline.  BW2 has completed the construction 
plans, specifications, and estimates for the waterline.  Staff is obtaining the 
utility easements for the waterline.  The engineer’s estimate for the construction 
is $120,000.  The new waterline will be 2,700 LF and serve 15 properties 

MOTION:  Councilmember Philip Lawrence made a Motion to approve 
amending the FY13-14 budget to include funding for the Osage 
six-inch waterline construction in amount not to exceed 
$120,000.  Councilmember Steve Duke seconded the Motion.  
Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

15) Discuss and consider 1) amending the FY 13-14 budget to include funding 
design and construction of the 12-inch Country Club waterline in conflict with 
the widening of the Country Club Bridge over White Rock Creek south of 
Forest Grove Road; 2) allow the Mayor to enter into an agreement to be drafted 
by the City Attorney with Lockwood, Andrews, & Newman, Inc. (LAN) for 
said deign in an amount not to exceed $25,000; and 3) allow the City Manager 
to authorize a change order to the Stinson Road Waterline project with 
Dickerson Construction in an amount not to exceed $205,000 for said 
construction. [Foerster] 
 
In July of this year, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) plans to 
let a project to widen the Country Club Bridge over White Rock Creek.  On the 
east side of Country Club Rd (aka FM 1378), the City has a 12-inch waterline.  



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 17 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

The new bridge is east of the existing bridge and will be in conflict with the 
City’s waterline. 
 
The engineering firm of LAN is designing the new bridge for TxDOT.  Staff 
plans to engage the services of LAN to prepare a change order for the Stinson 
Road 12-inch waterline contractor, Dickerson Construction, to relocate the new 
waterline along Country Club in an effort to save time and money. 
 
MOTION:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to approve 1) 

amending the FY 13-14 budget to include funding design and 
construction of the 12-inch Country Club waterline in conflict 
with the widening of the Country Club Bridge over White Rock 
Creek south of Forest Grove Road; 2) allow the Mayor to enter 
into an agreement to be drafted by the City Attorney with 
Lockwood, Andrews, & Newman, Inc. (LAN) for said deign in an 
amount not to exceed $25,000; and 3) allow the City Manager to 
authorize a change order to the Stinson Road Waterline project 
with Dickerson Construction in an amount not to exceed $205,000 
for said construction.  Councilmember Debbie Fisher seconded 
the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0 

16) Discuss and consider amending the FY13-14 budget to include funding for the 
abandonment of 6,600 feet of eight-inch asbestos-cement waterline. [Foerster] 

The City currently operates and maintains an eight-inch asbestos-cement 
waterline from the Country Club/Estelle intersection to the old water tower on 
W Lucas Road.  The waterline runs along the west side of Country Club and the 
south side of W Lucas Road.  This line supplies water to meters along Estates 
Road and seven meters along Country Club.  In connection with the new water 
service to the new fire station, staff is proposing tying the Estates Road eight-
inch waterline into the Country Club 12-inch waterline and move the old city 
hall tap to the Lucas Road 12-waterline. 

Staff is considering adding this work to the Stinson Road Waterline contract as 
a change order. 

MOTION: Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to amend the 
FY13-14 budget to include funding for the abandonment of 6,600 
feet of eight-inch asbestos-cement waterline, in an amount not to 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 18 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

exceed $25,000.  Councilmember Debbie Fisher seconded the 
Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

17)  Discuss and consider the approval of Ordinance # 2014-05-00781 of the City 
of Lucas amending the budget for Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2013 and 
ending September 30, 2014; providing a repealing clause; providing a 
severability clause; providing a savings clause; and providing an effective date. 
[Exum] 

General Fund 

Original Revenue Budget      $3,607,518 
Revised Revenue Budget      $4,179,936 
Change               +$572,418 
 
Original Expense Budget $3,594,514 
Revised Expense Budget $4,179,613 
Change     +$585,099 

Change in General Fund Revenue Budget 

Revenue: 
Park Dedication Fees                                +$10,000 
Seis Lagos FY 12-13 audit true-up             +$23,314 
County Fire Run Reimbursement                 +$24,938 
Building Permits                                          +$61,105 
Ambulance services(1 month delay/no participation from county or City of 
Parker)       ($15,000)                                
Tower Rental Income Verizon                      +$13,800 
Gov. Cap Note Proceeds                            +$345,000 
Insurance Proceeds guardrail damage         +$25,500 
Brockdale Rd Improvements Funding          +$75,000 
Other misc.                          +$8,761 

Total Net Change Revenue                      +$572,418                  

Change in General Fund Expense Budget 

Expense: 
City Council – Interviews with City Mgr Candidates     +$1,259 
City Secretary/Advertising - Annexations      +$3,500 
Admin – Unemployment Payments – previous City Manager +$8,172              
Admin - General Liability Insurance price increase                +$2,711 
Admin - Purchasing Module –council appr 5-15-14   +$7,400 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 19 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

P Works – BW2 Map update- council approval 5-15-14         +$30,000                                     
P Works – Guardrail Damage 3-20-14 CC approved  +$49,500 
P Works – Brockdale Road Improvements 5-1-14 CC approved  +$75,000 
Non-Depart – New Phone System      +$19,000 
Non-Depart – Web Filtering 4-17-14 CC approved   +$5,000  
Non-Depart – Reduced fuel Citizens on Patrol (COP) program ($2,500)          
Fire Dept. funded by Government Capital 11-7-13 CC appr (details to follow) 

+$345,000 
Fire Dept. used ambulance 10-17-13 CC approved   +$27,000 
Fire Dept. other adjustments (details to follow)    +$26,440 
Development Services reductions in fuel/repairs    ($5,964) 
Misc. /Other savings from position vacancies      ($6,419)       

Total Net Change Expense                              +$585,099 

Fire Department Government Capital Financed 
 
New Ambulance        +$226,807 
Two (2) Life Paks, 1 cot, and 1 chair     +$ 99,277 
Radios – four (4) portable       +$18,916 
Total          +345,000 

Fire Department - Other 
 
General Liability Insurance price increase            +$473 
Fuel – Propane due to weather                              +$936 
Overtime – turnover in staff – 2 vacancies, remaining overtime to cover is 26 
shifts of vacation, six shifts from vacant position, and 12 shifts of holiday. 
Additional amount needed                               +$26,600 
Adj to regular wages/pay due to vacancies         ($11,000) 
Training Grant SHSP 11-7-13 CC approved    +$3,499 
Dispatch increase population/pricing                 +$2,105 
Equip/supplies/repairs- used ambulance           +$3,827 

Total          +$26,440 

Water Fund 

Original Revenue Budget           $3,225,600 

Revised Revenue Budget               $3,243,458 

Change                          +$17,858 

Original Expense Budget           $3,141,709 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 20 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

Revised Expense Budget           $3,144,735 

Change                           +$3,026 

Note: Stage 4 Water Restrictions would impact water revenue and the budget 
would have to be evaluated and adjusted accordingly. This budget has not been 
revised for Stage 4 water restrictions. 

Change in Water Fund Revenue Budget 

Revenue: 

Increase in trash service accounts      +$13,000 

Increase in wastewater revenue      +$4,000 

Misc./Other         +$858 

Total Net Change Revenue       +17,858 

Change in Water Fund Expense Budget 

Expense: 
Meter costs commercial/residential growth               +$27,600 
Increase in customer accounts trash service                +$9,300 
Reduction in professional fees                                     ($6,968) 
Reduction in Engineer fees                                          ($2,000) 
Reduced NTMWD costs from original estimate             ($6,292) 
Reduction equipment capital                              ($12,200) 
Misc. /Other savings from position vacancies              ($8,287) 
Misc other charges/credits            +$1,873 

Total Net Change Expense                                              +$3,026 

Capital Improvements General Fund Projects 

Original Funding/Rev       $1,495,370 

Revised Funding/Rev       $1,250,635 

Change         ($244,735) 

Original Expenditure       $1,807,000 

Revised Expenditure       $2,844,786 

Change         +$1,037,786 

Capital Improvements General Fund Projects 

Funding Change: 

   TX Dot/RTR Funding recognized during FY 12/13 audit ($251,370)                           

 Interest Capital Fund                   +$6,635               



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 21 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

 Total                                            ($244,735) 

Expenditure Change: 

Fire Dept. Expansion                 +$409,486       Estimate for FY 13/14 

W Lucas & CC Intersection          +$95,300     Carryover from Fiscal Year             
12/13 – TX Dot Funded    

Estates/Angel Parkway-Constr.   +$450,000     Pending CC appr 5-15-14 

Estates & Angel Parkway-Design +$70,000       1-16-14 CC approved 

White Rock Bridge ROW               +$13,000       4-17-14  CC approved 

Total                                          $1,037,786 

Funding for Capital General Fund Projects 

Fire Dept. Expansion               $686,486 2011 CO 

W Lucas & CC intersection       $100,240 RTR Funds 

W Lucas & CC intersection       $25,060    Road Impact Fees 

W Lucas FM 1378/2551         $1,200,000 RTR Funds 

W Lucas FM 1378/2551           $56,000    Road Impact Fees 

W Lucas FM 1378/2551           $244,000 Collin County Funds 

Estates/Angel Pkwy-Design     $70,000    Road Impact Fees 

Estates/Angel Pkwy-Construc. $450,000 Road Impact Fees 

White Rock Bridge ROW            $13,000    GF Reserves 

Total                                        $2,844,786 

Capital Improvements Water Fund Projects 

Original Expenditure   $1,476,633 

Revised Expenditures  $2,246,626 

Change    +$769,993 

Expenditure Change: 

FM 2551 Gravity Sewer                 $70,000        Carryover costs FY 12-13  

Stinson Water Line                         ($262,962)    Project came in under budget 

Osage Water Project                        +$129,980      Pending 5-15-14 CC approval 

Rock Ridge Water Line(NTMWD constructed) Phase I  +$500,000      12-19-13 
CC approved 

Shepard’s Creek (Design)                +$15,500       1-16-14 CC approved 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 22 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

Lost Valley (Construction)                   +$12,975       1-16-14 CC approved 

Rock Ridge Phase II (Design)              +$49,500       2-20-14 CC approved 

White Rock Creek Bridge Water Line Adjust. +$230,000 Pending 5-15-14 CC 
approval 

FM 1378 abandoned 8 inch water line +$25,000        Pending 5-15-14 CC 
approval 

Total          $769,993 

Funding for Capital Water Fund Projects 

FM 2551 Gravity Sewer                   $70,000  Developers Contributions 

Stinson Water Line                           $1,195,371   2011 CO 

Osage Water Line                             $38,422        2011 CO 

Osage Water Line                             $91,558        Develop Contrib. (Reserves) 

Rock Ridge Phase I                          $455,755      Water Fund Reserves 

Rock Ridge Phase I                          $62,545        Develop Contrib. (Reserves) 

Shepard’s Creek                               $15,500        Develop Contrib. (Reserves) 

Lost Valley                                       $12,975        Develop Contrib.(Reserves) 

Rock Ridge Phase II                        $49,500        Develop Contrib. (Reserves) 

White Rock Creek Water Line Adj  $110,000      Develop Contrib. (Reserves) 

White Rock Creek Water Line Adj  $120,000  Impact Fees 

FM 1378 Abandoned Line               $25,000        Develop Contrib. (Reserves) 

Total                                                $2,246,626 

Note: Water Fund Reserves were used to fund Sewer project in FY 12-13. 
Developers Contributions for sewer are used as Water Fund Reserves in FY 13-
14. 

Projected 2011 CO Balances as of 9/30/2014 

General Fund: 

Ending Balance 9-30-13                         $2,757,222 

Minus expenditures FY 13-14               -$686,486 

Remaining Balance 9-30-14                  $2,070,736 

Water Fund: 

Ending Balance 9-30-13         $1,233,793 

Minus expenditures FY 13-14               $1,233,793 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 23 of 23 
City Council Minutes 
May 15, 2014 

Remaining Balance 9-30-14                              $0 

Projected Unrestricted Cash Balance as of 9/30/2014 

Prior to GASB 54 Fund Balance Policy Requirements: 

General Fund:    $5,069,579  16.1 Months 

Water Fund:    $3,593,462  15.6 Months 

After GASB 54 Fund Balance Policy Requirements: 

General Fund:    $3,152,272  10.0 Months 

Water Fund:    $2,196,095   9.6 Months 

MOTION:  Councilmember Jim Olk  made a Motion to approve Ordinance # 
2014-05-00781 of the City of Lucas amending the budget for 
Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 
2014; providing a repealing clause; providing a severability clause; 
providing a savings clause; and providing an effective date.  
Councilmember Wayne Millsap seconded the Motion.  Motion 
carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

18) Adjournment. 

MOTION: Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 10:13 p.m.  Councilmember Philip Lawrence       
seconded the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  7-0. 

These minutes were approved by a majority vote of the City Council on June 5, 
2014.  

 

             
      Rebecca Mark 
      Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 1 of 5 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
May 17, 2014 

City Council Special Meeting 
May 17, 2014, at 9:00 AM 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road 

Minutes 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark called the meeting to order at 9:03 AM. 
 
Present (Absent): 
 
Mayor Rebecca Mark   Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap  Councilmember Jim Olk 
Councilmember Steve Duke  Councilmember Philip Lawrence (Absent) 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
 
Staff Present: 
 
City Manager Joni Clarke    City Secretary Kathy Wingo 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
Public Works Director Stanton Foerster 

Regular Session 
 

1) Presentation, discussion and provide guidance to staff regarding EXISTING 
roadway and street projects. 
 

2) Presentation, discussion and provide guidance to staff regarding 
PROPOSED roadway and street projects. 

 
3) Presentation, discussion and provide guidance to staff regarding updating the 

City of Lucas Thoroughfare Plan (last revised September 24, 2007) to 
include the identification of ARTERIALS. 

 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 2 of 5 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
May 17, 2014 

4) Presentation, discussion and provide guidance to staff regarding updating the 
City of Lucas Thoroughfare Plan (last revised September 24, 2007) to 
include the identification of COLLECTORS. 

 
5) Presentation, discussion and provide guidance to staff regarding design 

features for Collector Streets deemed a priority based on traffic volume and 
current condition to include: 

 Blondy Jhune 
 Winningkoff 
 Snider (East/West) 
 Stinson 
 Forest Grove 
 Snider (North/South) 

 
All the above agenda items were combined for the discussion. 
 
City Manager Joni Clarke stated that one of the main goals for today was to 
discuss the Thoroughfare Plan.  Ms. Clarke went on to identify five (5) of 
the main streets that will be included in the discussion today: 

1. Blondy Jhune 
2. Winningkoff  
3. Forest Grove 
4. Stinson 
5. Snider 

 
If Council’s goal is to protect the quality of life, there is a way to realign 
some of the arterial roadways, being presently identified as Bethany/W. 
Lucas Road; Angel Parkway; Osage Lane; and Southview/Country Club. 
 
There is a proposed roadway near Seis Lagos that will be done by the 
developers that would be gated upon completion. 
 
How these roads are designated is very important as other entities look at our 
plan for future designs.   
 
According to TxDOT, Parker Road requires 80 parcels along the roadway 
before consideration of widening the roadway.  Most of those parcels are 
within the City of Lucas. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 3 of 5 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
May 17, 2014 

 
Council reviewed the current Thoroughfare Plan and identified the 
ARTERIALS: 
 

Road Classification Comments 
Parker Road A  
E. & W. Lucas Roads B  
McGarity  Remove  
Estelle D  
Estates Parkway B  
Blondy Jhune C Portion to be 

straightened out.  
Roundabout at the 

intersection of Blondy 
Jhune & Winningkoff 

Country Club B  
Winningkoff C Roundabout at the 

intersection of Blondy 
Jhune & Winningkoff. 

E. Winningkoff C  
Forest Grove C  
Snider D  
Northbound Snider C  
Highland Drive/Lewis Lane  Align with Parker, if 

possible. 
Angel Parkway  Not in city limits, but 

use as arterial. 
Stinson/Highland C Roundabout, align if 

possible. 
Stinson C The northern alignment 

becomes a D, 
roundabout along the 
curved areas 

Rock Ridge C Not in the city, there 
was some discussion to 
align Rock Ridge with 
Angel Parkway near the 
Allen retention ponds. 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 4 of 5 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
May 17, 2014 

Alison C Back access to the 
commercial, propose 
realignment with Rock 
Ridge. 

Ingram C Roundabout at Travis 
Ranch & Ingram. 

County Club B  
Southview B  
Mary Lee/Forest Grove 
crossing 

 Remove from the plan. 

Scarlett/Blondy Jhune  Proposed roadway, 
remove from the plan. 

Brockdale Park C In-city portion, to 
station 70. 

Brockdale Park B South, portions 70 +. 
Brockdale Park A Out of the city. 
Osage D  
 
The following roads were given priorities for repairs: 
 

 Blondy Jhune    2 
 Winningkoff    1 
 Snider (East/West)    3 
 Stinson     5 
 Forest Grove    4 
 Snider (North/South)   6 

 
Portion of Snider was removed from the collector list.  Preserve what exists, 
but from a safety and functionality standpoint, determine what will be done 
for trees alongside the roadways.  The city could encourage future 
developments to plant trees that would be appropriate along the roadway. 
 
Bridges – The bridge on Snider needs to be redone as it floods when there is 
a heavy rain event.  Blondy Jhune has 2 bridges that will need to be replaced 
soon.  It was discussed that the City needs to make them pleasing to the eye 
but achieve a balance between costs and attractiveness. 
 



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS  Page 5 of 5 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
May 17, 2014 

Miscellaneous items discussed to incorporate with future roadway 
repairs/maintenance: 
 

 Medians are to be used only if the developer does the future 
maintenance. 

 
 Utilities in front of the commercial areas will be buried. 

 
 Perhaps find a way to access the trail off Snider, make it accessible for 

foot traffic, horse, bicycle traffic where possible. 
 

 Whenever possible use more asphalt for shoulder areas to keep with 
the country feel. 

 
 Add “Whoa” under the stop signs.  This would be unique to Lucas! 

6) Adjournment. 

MOTION:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap made a Motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 12:05 p.m.  Councilmember Steve Duke seconded 
the Motion.  Motion carried.  Vote:  6-0. 

These minutes were approved by a majority vote of the City Council on June 
5, 2014. 

 

 ____________________________ 
Rebecca Mark 
Mayor 

     ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC 
City Secretary 



Item No. 05b 

 
 

 
Name & Title of Requestor:  Stanton Foerster, Director of Public Works 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Consent and approve the Pave-It, Inc. contract for construction of the W. Lucas 
Road fire station driveway in the amount of $15,373.59 and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the agreement with a twenty percent (20%) contingency in the amount of 
$3,074.72 for a total of $18,448.31. 
 

Background Information:  
 
The driveway construction was removed from the original W Lucas Road/Country 
Club Road Intersection project due funding.  With the addition of RTR funds to the 
project, funds are now available to construct a concrete driveway approach 
between W Lucas Road and the fire station. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Pave-It, Inc. Contract 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
Twenty percent (20%) of the total cost will come from Item 21-8210-491-112, and 
80% will be funded using RTR funds. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval of this agenda item. 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date:  June 5, 2014 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

 

W Lucas Road Fire Station Driveway Construction 

Pave-It, Inc. 

 



 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

ARTICLE I; THE CONTRACT AND THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 1 

 1.1 The Contract    1 

 1.2. The Contract Documents   1 

 1.3 Entire Agreement    1 

 1.4 No Privity with Others   1 

 1.5 Intent and Interpretation   1 

 1.6 Ownership of Contract Documents  2 

 

ARTICLE II; THE WORK    2 

 2.1      2 

 2.2 Work     2 

 

ARTICLE III; CONTRACT TIME    3 

 3.1 Substantial Completion   3 

 3.2 Time      3 

 3.3 Time is of the Essence   3 

 3.4 Liquidated Damages; Early Completion Bonus 4 

 3.5 No Damages for Delay; No Back-Charges; Damage Waiver 4 

 

ARTICLE IV; CONTRACT PRICE   5 

 4.1 The Contract Price   5 

 

ARTICLE V; PAYMENT OF THE CONTRACT PRICE 5 

 5.1 Schedule of Values   5 

 5.2 Payment Procedure   5 

 5.3 Withheld Payment   6 

 5.4 Unexcused Failure to Pay   6 

 5.5 Certificate of Substantial Completion 7 

 5.6 Completion and Final Payment  7 

 

ARTICLE VI; THE CITY     8 

 6.1 Information, Services and Things Required from City 8 

 6.2 Right to Stop Work   8 

 6.3 City's Right to Perform Work  8 

 

ARTICLE VII; THE CONTRACTOR   8 

 7.1 Must Follow Contract   8 

 7.2 Use of Web-Based Project Management System 8 

 7.3 Prosecution of Work   8 

 7.4 Warranty    9 

 7.5 Permits; Fees; Licenses   9 

 7.6 Supervision    9 

 7.7 Work Schedule    9 

 7.8 On-Site Drawings   10 

 7.9 As-Built Plans, Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples 10 

 7.10 Cleaning the Site and the Project  10 

 7.11 Access to Work and Inspections  10 

 7.12 Indemnity and Disclaimer   10 

 7.13 Nondiscrimination   11 

 7.14 Prevailing Wage Rates   11 

 7.15 Job Site Safety Precautions  11 

 7.16 Warning Devices and Barricades  12 

 7.17 Protection of Utilities and Other Contractors 12 

 



 

 
ii 

ARTICLE VIII; CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION  12 

 8.1 The Engineer    12 

 8.2 Engineer's Administration   12 

 8.3 Claims by the Contractor   13 

 8.4 Extra Work    13 

 8.5 Claims for Additional Costs or Time; Contract Price Increase 14 

 8.6 Field Orders    14 

 8.7 Mediation    14 

 

ARTICLE IX; SUBCONTRACTORS   15 

 9.1 Definition    15 

 9.2 Award of Subcontracts   15 

 

ARTICLE X; CHANGES IN THE WORK   15 

 10.1 Changes Permitted   15 

 10.2 Change Order Defined   15 

 10.3 Changes in the Contract Price  15 

 10.4 Minor Changes    16 

 10.5 Effect of Executed Change Order  16 

 10.6 Notice to Surety; Consent   16 

 

ARTICLE XI; UNCOVERING AND CORRECTING WORK 16 

 11.1 Uncovering Work   16 

 11.2 Correcting Work    16 

 11.3 City May Accept Defective or Nonconforming Work 17 

 

ARTICLE XII; CONTRACT DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 17 

 12.1 Termination by the Contractor  17 

 12.2 Termination by the City   17 

 12.3 Use of Third-Party Oversight or Construction Manager 19 

 

ARTICLE XIII; INSURANCE    19 

 13.1 Contractor Shall Maintain Insurance 19 

 13.2 Types and Amounts of Contractor’s Insurance 19 

 13.3 Additional Insured   19 

 13.4 Written Notification   19 

 13.5 Premiums and Assessments; Subrogation 20 

 13.6 Certificate of Insurance   20 

 13.7 Primary Coverage   20 

 13.8 Worker’s Compensation Insurance Coverage 20 

 

ARTICLE XIV; MISCELLANEOUS   21 

 14.1 Laws and Ordinances   21 

 14.2 Governing Law    21 

 14.3 Successors and Assigns   21 

 14.4 Surety Bonds    21 

 14.5 Force Majeure    22 

 14.6 Immunities; Defenses   22 

 14.7 No Rights in Third Parties   22 

 14.8 Severability    22 

 14.9 Amendments; No Waiver   22 

 14.10 Notices     22 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________________



 1 

City of Lucas, Texas 

 This Agreement is made by and between the City of Lucas, Texas, a home-rule municipality (hereinafter 

referred to as the "City") and Pave-It, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor") for construction of W Lucas 

Road Fire Station Driveway Construction Project, (hereinafter referred to as the "Project"), the City and the Contractor 

hereby agreeing as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

THE CONTRACT AND THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

1.1 THE CONTRACT 

1.1.1 The contract between the City and the Contractor, of which this agreement (sometimes referred to herein as 

the “Contract”) is a part, consists of the Contract Documents.  It shall be effective on the date this Agreement is 

executed by the last party to execute it. 

1.2. THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

1.2.1 The Contract Documents consist of this agreement; Pave-It email dated May 19, 2014; Pave-It quote sheet; 

BW2 Engineers, Inc. plan sheet 1 of 1, Job No. 12-1572, sealed on April 9, 2014, (see attachments); and all Change 

Orders and Field Orders issued hereafter. 

1.3 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

1.3.1 This Contract, together with the Contractor's performance and payment bonds for the Project, all General 

Conditions, Special Conditions, Plans and Specifications, and Addenda attached thereto, constitute the entire and 

exclusive agreement between the City and the Contractor with reference to the Project.  Specifically, but without 

limitation, this Contract supersedes any bid documents and all prior written or oral communications, representations 

and negotiations, if any, between the City and Contractor not expressly made a part hereof. 

1.4 NO PRIVITY WITH OTHERS 

1.4.1 Nothing contained in this Contract shall create, or be interpreted to create, privity or any other contractual 

agreement between the City and any person or entity other than the Contractor. 

1.5 INTENT AND INTERPRETATION 

1.5.1 The intent of this Contract is to require complete, correct and timely execution of the Work.  Any Work that 

may be required, implied or inferred by the Contract Documents, or any one or more of them, as necessary to produce 

the intended result shall be provided by the Contractor for the Contract Price. 

1.5.2 This Contract is intended to be an integral whole and shall be interpreted as internally consistent.  What is 

required by any one Contract Document shall be considered as required by the Contract. 

1.5.3 When a word, term or phrase is used in this Contract, it shall be interpreted or construed, first, as defined 

herein; second, if not defined, according to its generally accepted meaning in the construction industry; and third, if 

there is no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, according to its common and customary usage. 

1.5.4 The word “City” includes the City of Lucas, Texas, a municipal corporation, and its public officials, officers, 

employees, agents and employees. The word “Contractor” includes the Contractor and its officers, employees, agents 

and representatives. The word "include", "includes", or "including", as used in this subparagraph and in this Contract, 

shall be deemed to be followed by the phrase, "without limitation". 



 

 
2 

1.5.5 The specification herein of any act, failure, refusal, omission, event, occurrence or condition as constituting 

a material breach of this Contract shall not imply that any other, non-specified act, failure, refusal, omission, event, 

occurrence or condition shall be deemed not to constitute a material breach of this Contract. 

1.5.6 Words or terms used as nouns in this Contract shall be inclusive of their singular and plural forms, unless the 

context of their usage clearly requires a contrary meaning. 

 

1.5.7 The Contractor shall have a continuing duty to read, carefully study and compare each of the Contract 

Documents, the Shop Drawings, the Product Data, and any Plans and Specifications, and shall give written notice to 

the City of any inconsistency, ambiguity, error or omission which the Contractor may discover with respect to these 

documents before proceeding with the affected Work.  The issuance, or the express or implied approval by the City 

or the Engineer of the Contract Documents, Shop Drawings or Product Data, shall not relieve the Contractor of the 

continuing duties imposed hereby, nor shall any such approval be evidence of the Contractor's compliance with this 

Contract.  The City has requested the Engineer to only prepare documents for the Project, including the Drawings, 

Plans and Specifications for the Project, which are accurate, adequate, consistent, coordinated and sufficient for 

construction.  HOWEVER, THE CITY MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY NATURE 

WHATSOEVER TO THE CONTRACTOR CONCERNING SUCH DOCUMENTS. THE CONTRACTOR 

ASSUMES ALL RISK OF ERRORS, AMBIGUITIES AND INACCURACIES. By the execution hereof, the 

Contractor acknowledges and represents that it has received, reviewed and carefully examined such documents, has 

found them to be complete, accurate, adequate, consistent, coordinated and sufficient for construction, and that the 

Contractor has not, does not, and will not rely upon any representation or warranties by the City concerning such 

documents as no such representation or warranties have been or are hereby made.  Further, the Contractor represents 

and warrants that it has had a sufficient opportunity to inspect the Project site and assumes any and all responsibility 

for inadequacies or ambiguities in the plans, drawings or specifications as well as for latent conditions of the site 

where the work is to be performed. 

1.5.8 As between numbers and scaled measurements on the Drawings and in the Design, the numbers shall govern, 

as between larger scale and smaller scale drawings, the larger scale shall govern. 

1.5.9 Neither the organization of any of the Contract Documents into divisions, sections, paragraphs, articles, (or 

other categories), nor the organization or arrangement of the Design, shall control the Contractor in dividing the Work 

or in establishing the extent or scope of the Work to be performed by Subcontractors. 

 

 

1.6 OWNERSHIP OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

1.6.1 The Contract Documents, and each of them individually and collectively, shall remain the property of the 

City.  The Contractor shall have the right to keep one record set of the Contract Documents upon completion of the 

Project; provided, however, that in no event shall Contractor use, or permit to be used, any or all of such Contract 

Documents on other projects without the City's prior written authorization. 

ARTICLE II 

THE WORK 

2.1 The Contractor shall perform all of the Work required, implied or reasonably inferable from this Contract. 

2.2 WORK 

2.2.1 The term "Work" shall mean whatever is done by or required of the Contractor to perform and complete its 

duties under this Contract, including the following: construction of the whole or a designated part of the Project; 

furnishing of any required surety bonds and insurance, and the provision or furnishing of labor, supervision, services, 

materials, supplies, equipment, fixtures, appliances, facilities, tools, transportation, storage, permits and licenses 

required of the Contractor, power, water, fuel, heat, light, cooling and all other utilities as required by this Contract.  

The Work to be performed by the Contractor is generally described as follows: 



 

 
3 

1)  Pave-It email dated May 19, 2014; 

2)  Pave-It quote sheet; and 

3)  BW2 Engineers, Inc. plan sheet 1 of 1, Job No. 12-1572, sealed on April 9, 2014. 

2.2.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for paying for and procuring all materials and labor and furnishing all 

services necessary or appropriate for the full performance of the Work and the for the full completion of the Project.  

All materials and workmanship shall be of good quality.  Upon request, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory proof 

of the type, kind, and quality of materials.   

 

ARTICLE III 

CONTRACT TIME 

3.1 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

3.1.1 "Substantial Completion" shall mean that stage in the progression of the Work when the Work is sufficiently 

complete in accordance with this Contract that the City can enjoy beneficial use or occupancy of the Work and can 

utilize the Work for its intended purpose, even though minor miscellaneous work and/or adjustment may be required. 

3.2 TIME  

3.2.1 The Contractor shall commence the Work within thirty (30) days of receipt of a written Notice to Proceed, 

and shall achieve Substantial Completion of the Work no later than sixty (60) calendar days from the date specified 

in the Notice to Proceed.  The term “calendar days” shall mean any and all days of the week or month, no days being 

excepted. The number of calendar days from the date on which the Work is permitted to proceed, through the date set 

forth for Substantial Completion, shall constitute the Contract Time” and the “scheduled completion date.” The 

execution of this Contract by the Contractor constitutes an agreement that adequate time has been allotted for this 

Contract, given the Contract Price. 

3.2.2 Work may proceed on any day of the week, including weekends, and at any time of the day.  However, work 

shall not occur on such days or at such times as, in the City’s or Engineer’s discretion, may be a violation of noise or 

environmental regulations or ordinances, or when the presence of workers, equipment or materials may create an 

abnormally hazardous condition.  

3.2.3 The Contractor shall submit and comply with construction schedules establishing completion timelines and 

deadlines for each component of the Project. Construction schedules shall be submitted to and approved by the 

Engineer and the City on a regular basis as required by the Contract Documents. If no reference is made to construction 

schedules in the Contract Documents, then construction schedules shall be submitted with each Application for 

Payment             .   

3.3 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

3.3.1 The scheduled completion date is based on public necessity. The scheduled completion date is factored into 

and is a material component of the Contract Price. All limitations of time set forth in the Contract Documents are of 

the essence of this Contract.   

3.3.2 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK AND THE COMPLETION OF 

THE PROJECT ON OR BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COMPLETION DATE. THE SCHEDULED COMPLETION 

DATE IS A DEADLINE. THE CITY EMPLOYS A ZERO-TOLERANCE POLICY REGARDING THE TIME FOR 

COMPLETION. The time for completion is an essential and material term of this Contract and the Contractor’s failure 

to achieve substantial completion on the date stated herein, to comply with work schedules, or achieve milestones in 

approved construction schedules, shall be a material breach and default of this Contract. 



 

 
4 

3.3.3 The City may, at the City’s sole option, elect to allow Contractor to continue with the Work, or may declare 

Contractor to be in breach and default of the Contract and order Contractor to remove all equipment and personnel 

from the work site. All remedies for Contractor’s late performance shall be nonexclusive and cumulative without 

waiver of any other, and the City’s election of one shall not preclude the City from pursuing any other.  

3.3.4 It is contemplated by the parties that the progress of the Work may be delayed by certain conditions beyond 

the control of the parties; these delays have been contemplated by the parties and considered in the time allotted for 

performance specified herein and in the contract price and includes, but is not limited to delays occasioned on account 

of adverse weather, temporary unavailability of materials, shipment delays, and the presence and potential interference 

of other contractors or of utilities that may be performing work at the Project site unrelated to this Contract.  These 

delays have been considered and included in the determination of the scheduled completion date and the Contract 

Price. 

 

 

3.4 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES; EARLY COMPLETION BONUS 

3.4.1 This section is intentionally blank. 

 

3.5 NO DAMAGES FOR DELAY; NO BACK-CHARGES; DAMAGE WAIVER 

3.5.1 No claim shall be made by the Contractor to the City, and no damages, costs or extra compensation shall be 

allowed or paid by the City to the Contractor for any delay or hindrance from any cause in the progress or completion 

of the Work or this Contract. The Contractor’s sole remedy in the event of any delay or hindrance, regardless of cause, 

shall be to request time extensions by written change orders as provided for hereinafter. The failure to seek or obtain 

a change order for time extension shall be deemed a waiver thereof and Contractor shall be regarded as having made 

a determination that the delay will not affect the completion of the Work. Should the Contractor be delayed by an act 

of the City, or should the City order a stoppage of the Work for sufficient cause unrelated to any act or omission of 

the Contractor, an extension of time shall be granted by the City by Change Order upon written application, which 

extension shall not be unreasonably denied, to compensate for the delay. 

3.5.2 The City shall have the authority to suspend the Work wholly or in part for such period or periods of time as 

it may deem appropriate due to unsuitable conditions considered unfavorable for the proper prosecution of the Work 

or for the failure of the Contractor to carry out instructions from the City or City’s representative.  During any period 

in which the Work is stopped or during which any of the Work is not actively in progress for any reason, Contractor 

shall properly protect the site and the Work from damage, loss or harm. The Contractor shall not be compensated for 

periods of delay caused by a suspension of the work by the City. If work is suspended due to unsuitable conditions 

through no fault of the Contractor, an extension of time shall be granted by the City by Change Order upon written 

application, which extension shall not be unreasonably denied, to compensate for the delay.  

3.5.3 The Contractor shall not have or assert any claim against the City for damages or back-charges of any kind 

for any reason, including but not limited to claims for Extra Work, damages, economic loss, additional costs, unknown 

latent site conditions, and refusals by the City to grant extensions of time, unless supported and authorized by a written 

Change Order or separate agreement signed by all parties. The Contractor, in entering into this Contract, hereby 

waives, releases, quitclaims, discharges and holds harmless the City from and against any and all claims, damages, 

liabilities and losses, save and except those arising under Paragraph 12.1 of this Contract. 

ARTICLE IV 

CONTRACT PRICE 

4.1 THE CONTRACT PRICE 

4.1.1 The City shall pay, and the Contractor shall accept, as full and complete payment for all of the Work required 

herein, the fixed sum of  



 

 
5 

$15,373.59 

The sum set forth in this Paragraph 4.1 shall constitute the Contract Price which shall not be modified except by 

written Change Order as provided in this Contract, or the assessment of liquidated damages or the award of an early 

completion bonus. 

 

ARTICLE V 

PAYMENT OF THE CONTRACT PRICE 

5.1 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 

5.1.1 The Schedule of Values, submitted to and accepted by the City and Engineer at the time of the Contractor’s 

bid, allocates the Contract Price to the various portions of the Work. The Contractor's Schedule of Values shall have 

been be prepared, or at the City’s or Engineer’s request shall be amended prior to the commencement of construction, 

in such form, with such detail, and supported by such data as the Engineer or the City may require to substantiate its 

accuracy. The Contractor shall not imbalance its Schedule of Values nor artificially inflate any element thereof. The 

violation of this provision by the Contractor shall constitute a material breach of this Contract. The Schedule of Values 

shall be used only as a basis for the Contractor's Applications for Payment and shall only constitute such basis after it 

has been acknowledged and accepted in writing by the Engineer and the City. 

5.2 PAYMENT PROCEDURE 

5.2.1 The City shall pay the Contract Price to the Contractor as provided below. 

5.2.2 PROGRESS PAYMENTS - Based upon the Contractor's Applications for Payment submitted to the Engineer and 

upon Certificates for Payment subsequently issued to the City by the Engineer, the City shall make progress payments 

to the Contractor on account of the Contract Price. 

 

5.2.3 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT - On or before the 25th day of each month after commencement of the Work, 

the Contractor shall submit an Application for Payment for the period ending the 15th day of the month to the Engineer 

in such form and manner, and with such supporting data and content, as the City or the Engineer may require. The 

Contractor may request payment for that portion of the Contract Price properly allocable to Contract requirements 

properly provided and to labor, materials and equipment properly incorporated in the Work, less retainage and less 

the total amount of previous payments received from the City. Such Application for Payment shall be signed by the 

Contractor and shall constitute the Contractor's representation that the Work has progressed to the level for which 

payment is requested in accordance with the Schedule of Values, that the Work has been properly installed or 

performed in full compliance with this Contract, and that the Contractor knows of no reason why payment should not 

be made as requested.  Thereafter, the Engineer will review the Application for Payment and may also review the 

Work at the Project site or elsewhere to determine whether the quantity and quality of the Work is as represented in 

the Application for Payment and is as required by this Contract. The Engineer shall determine and certify to the City 

the amount properly owing to the Contractor. The City shall make partial payments on account of the Contract Price 

to the Contractor within thirty (30) days following the Engineer's receipt and approval of each Application for 

Payment. The amount of each partial payment shall be the amount certified for payment by the Engineer less such 

amounts, if any, otherwise owing by the Contractor to the City or which the City shall have the right to withhold as 

authorized by this Contract. The Engineer's certification of the Contractor's Application for Payment shall not preclude 

the City from the exercise of any of its rights as set forth in Paragraph 5.3 herein below. 

 

5.2.4 STATEMENT OF DELAY - Each Application for Payment shall include a Statement of Delay showing the 

number of days lost due to inclement weather, conflicts with other City contractors, utilities, or design specifications, 

or other proper reasons. The failure to submit the Statement of Delay shall be a waiver of any claim for additional 

days or extensions of the scheduled completion date.  

 

5.2.5 RETAINAGE - If the Contract Price set forth in Subparagraph 4.1.1 exceeds $400,000, the City shall withhold 

retainage of ten (10) percent from each progress payment to secure performance of the Contract and shall deposit in 



 

 
6 

an interest-bearing account that portion of the retainage withheld that exceeds five (5) percent of the progress payment.  

If a different percentage is set forth in the Invitation to Bid, then that percentage shall apply. 

5.2.6 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the City 

when installed at the Project site, regardless of the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon 

submittal of an Application for Payment, all Work for which payments have been received from the City shall be free 

and clear of liens, claims, security interest or other encumbrances in favor of the Contractor or any other person or 

entity whatsoever. 

5.2.7 The Contractor shall promptly pay each Subcontractor out of the amount paid to the Contractor on account 

of such Subcontractor's Work, the amount to which such Subcontractor is entitled.  In the event the City becomes 

informed that the Contractor has not paid a Subcontractor as herein provided, the City shall have the right, but not the 

duty, to issue future checks in payment to the Contractor of amounts otherwise due hereunder naming the Contractor 

and such Subcontractor as joint payees. Such joint check procedure, if employed by the City, shall create no rights in 

favor of any person or entity beyond the right of the named payees to payment of the check and shall not be deemed 

to commit the City to repeat the procedure in the future. 

5.2.8 No progress payment, nor any use or occupancy of the Project by the City, shall be interpreted to constitute 

an acceptance of any Work not in strict compliance with this Contract. 

5.3 WITHHELD PAYMENT 

5.3.1 The City may decline to make payment, may withhold funds, and, if necessary, may demand the return of 

some or all of the amounts previously paid to the Contractor, to protect the City from loss because of: 

 (a) defective Work not remedied by the Contractor or, in the opinion of the City, likely to be remedied by 

the Contractor; 

 (b) claims of third parties against the City or the City's property; 

 (c) failure by the Contractor to pay Subcontractors or others in a prompt and proper fashion; 

 (d) evidence that the balance of the Work cannot be completed in accordance with the Contract for the 

unpaid balance of the Contract Price, 

 (e) evidence that the Work will not be completed in the time required for substantial or final completion 

(final completion meaning the full and final completion of all work called for by this Contract and final 

acceptance by the Engineer and the City); 

 (f) persistent failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract; 

 (g) damage to the City or a third party to whom the City is, or may be, liable. 

 (h) failure to submit an updated project schedule in accordance with Subparagraph 3.2.3. 

 (i) failure to submit record drawings in accordance with Subparagraph 7.9.1. 

 

In the event that the City makes written demand upon the Contractor for amounts previously paid by the City as 

contemplated in this Subparagraph 5.3.1, the Contractor shall promptly comply with such demand.  The City shall 

have no duty to third parties to withhold payment to the Contractor and shall incur no liability for a failure to withhold 

funds. 



 

 
7 

5.4 UNEXCUSED FAILURE TO PAY 

5.4.1 If within twenty (20) days after the date established herein for payment to the Contractor by the City, the 

City, without cause or basis hereunder, fails to pay the Contractor any amount then due and payable to the Contractor, 

then the Contractor may after ten (10) additional days' written notice to the City and the Engineer, and without 

prejudice to any other available rights or remedies it may have, stop the Work until payment of those amounts due 

from the City have been received.  Late payments shall not accrue interest or other late charges. 

5.5 CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

5.5.1 When the Contractor believes that the Work is substantially complete, the Contractor shall submit to the 

Engineer a list of items to be completed or corrected.  When the Engineer and the City on the basis of an inspection 

determine that the Work is in fact substantially complete, the Engineer will prepare a Certificate of Substantial 

Completion which shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, shall state the responsibilities of the City and 

the Contractor for Project security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work, and insurance, and shall fix the 

time within which the Contractor shall complete the items listed therein. In no event, however, shall the date of Final 

Completion be delayed. Guarantees required by the Contract shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion 

of the Work; however, the maintenance bond required herein, and the assurances given thereunder, shall commence 

of and from the date of final acceptance of the work by the City. The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be 

submitted to the City and the Contractor for their written acceptance of the responsibilities assigned to them in such 

certificate.  

Upon Substantial Completion of the Work, and execution by both the City and the Contractor of the Certificate of 

Substantial Completion, the City shall pay the Contractor for all work completed to date, less retainage.  

5.6 COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT 

5.6.1 When all of the Work is finally complete and the Contractor is ready for a final inspection, it shall notify the 

City and the Engineer thereof in writing.  Thereupon, the Engineer will make final inspection of the Work and, if the 

Work is complete in full accordance with this Contract and this Contract has been fully performed, the Engineer will 

promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment certifying to the City that the Project is complete and the Contractor is 

entitled to the remainder of the unpaid Contract Price (including retainage and the interest accrued on the retainage in 

excess of five (5) percent if the Contract Price is in excess of $400,000), plus an early completion bonus, if any, less 

any amount withheld pursuant to this Contract. If the Engineer is unable to issue its final Certificate for Payment and 

is required to repeat its final inspection of the Work, the Contractor shall bear the cost of such repeat final inspection(s) 

which cost may be deducted by the City from the Contractor's final payment. 

5.6.1.1 If the Contractor fails to achieve final completion within the time fixed therefor by the Engineer in its 

Certificate of Substantial Completion, the Contractor shall pay the City the sum set forth hereinabove as liquidated 

damages per day for each and every calendar day of unexcused delay in achieving final completion beyond the date 

set forth herein for final completion of the Work.  Any sums due and payable hereunder by the Contractor shall be 

payable, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages representing an estimate of delay damages likely to be sustained 

by the City, estimated at or before the time of executing this Contract.  When the City reasonably believes that final 

completion will be inexcusably delayed, the City shall be entitled, but not required, to withhold from any amounts 

otherwise due the Contractor an amount then believed by the City to be adequate to recover liquidated damages 

applicable to such delays.  If and when the Contractor overcomes the delay in achieving final completion, or any part 

thereof, for which the City has withheld payment, the City shall promptly release to the Contractor those funds 

withheld, but no longer applicable, as liquidated damages.  Liquidated damages shall be deducted first from any earned 

early completion bonus, then from any sums otherwise due to the Contractor. 

5.6.2 The Contractor shall not be entitled to final payment unless and until it submits to the Engineer its affidavit 

that all payrolls, invoices for materials and equipment, and other liabilities connected with the Work for which the 

City, or the City's property might be responsible, have been fully paid or otherwise satisfied; releases and waivers of 

lien from all Subcontractors of the Contractor and of any and all other parties required by the Engineer or the City; 

consent of Surety, if any, to final payment.  If any third party fails or refuses to provide a release of claim or waiver 



 

 
8 

of lien as required by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a bond satisfactory to the City to discharge any such lien 

or indemnify the City from liability.   

5.6.3 The City shall make final payment of all sums due the Contractor within thirty (30) days of the Engineer's 

execution of a final Certificate for Payment. 

5.6.4 Acceptance of final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims against the City by the Contractor except 

for those claims previously made in writing against the City by the Contractor, pending at the time of final payment, 

and identified in writing by the Contractor as unsettled at the time of its request for final payment. 

5.6.5 Other than interest on retainage in excess of 5% under Paragraph 5.2.5, under no circumstances shall 

Contractor be entitled to receive interest on any payments or monies due Contractor by the City, whether the amount 

on which the interest may accrue is timely, late, wrongfully withheld, or an assessment of damages of any kind. 

ARTICLE VI 

THE CITY 

 
6.1 INFORMATION, SERVICES AND THINGS 

 REQUIRED FROM CITY 

6.1.1 The City shall furnish to the Contractor, at the time of executing this Contract, any and all written and tangible 

material in its possession concerning conditions below ground at the site of the Project. Such written and tangible 

material is furnished to the Contractor only in order to make complete disclosure of such material and for no other 

purpose.  By furnishing such material, the City does not represent, warrant, or guarantee its accuracy either in whole, 

in part, implicitly or explicitly, or at all, and shall have no liability therefor.  The City shall also furnish surveys, legal 

limitations and utility locations (if known), and a legal description of the Project site. 

6.1.2 Excluding permits and fees normally the responsibility of the Contractor, the City shall obtain all approvals, 

easements, and the like required for construction and shall pay for necessary assessments and charges required for 

construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing facilities. 

6.1.3 The City shall furnish the Contractor, free of charge, two copies of the Contract Documents for execution of 

the Work. 

6.2 RIGHT TO STOP WORK 

6.2.1 If the Contractor persistently fails or refuses to perform the Work in accordance with this Contract, if the 

Contractor fails to meet milestones set forth in approved construction schedules, if the City has sufficient reason to 

believe that the Contractor is not and will not complete the Project by the scheduled completion date, or if the best 

interests of the public health, safety or welfare so require, the City may order the Contractor to stop the Work, or any 

described portion thereof, until the cause for stoppage has been corrected, no longer exists, or the City orders that 

Work be resumed. In such event, the Contractor shall immediately obey such order. 

6.3 CITY'S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK 

6.3.1 If the Contractor's Work is stopped by the City under Paragraph 6.2, and the Contractor fails within seven 

(7) days of such stoppage to provide adequate assurance to the City that the cause of such stoppage will be eliminated 

or corrected, then the City may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies the City may have against the 

Contractor, proceed to carry out the subject Work.  In such a situation, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued 

deducting from the Contract Price the cost of correcting the subject deficiencies, plus compensation for the Engineer's 

additional services and expenses necessitated thereby, if any.  If the unpaid portion of the Contract Price is insufficient 

to cover the amount due the City, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the City. 

 



 

 
9 

ARTICLE VII 

THE CONTRACTOR 

7.1 MUST FOLLOW CONTRACT 

7.1.1 The Contractor shall perform no part of the Work at any time without adequate Contract Documents or, as 

appropriate, approved Shop Drawings, Product Data or Samples for such portion of the Work.  If the Contractor 

performs any of the Work knowing it involves a recognized error, inconsistency or omission in the Contract 

Documents without such notice to the Engineer, the Contractor shall bear responsibility for such performance and 

shall bear the cost of correction. The Contractor shall perform the Work strictly in accordance with this Contract 

7.2 PROSECUTION OF WORK 

7.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work using the Contractor's best skill, effort and attention.  The 

Contractor shall be responsible to the City for any and all acts or omissions of the Contractor, its employees and others 

engaged in the Work on behalf of the Contractor. 

7.3.2 The Contractor shall give adequate attention to the faithful prosecution of the Work and the timely completion 

of this Contract, with authority to determine the manner and means of performing such Work, so long as such methods 

insure timely completion and proper performance. 

7.3.3 The Contractor shall exercise all appropriate means and measures to insure a safe and secure jobsite in order 

to avoid and prevent injury, damage or loss to persons or property. 

7.3.4 The City will not interfere with the Contractor’s manner and means of performing the Work. However, the 

City’s insistence on strict compliance with the Contract shall not be regarded as an interference with the Contractor’s 

manner and means.  In the event that any part of the Work is not in strict compliance with the Contract, the Contractor 

is and shall be estopped from claiming any interference by the City or Engineer with the Contractor’s manner and 

means of performing that part of the Work. 

7.4 WARRANTY 

7.4.1 The Contractor warrants to the City that all labor furnished to progress the Work under this Contract will be 

competent to perform the tasks undertaken, that the product of such labor will yield only first-class results, that 

materials and equipment furnished will be of good quality and new unless otherwise permitted by this Contract, and 

that the Work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in strict conformance with this Contract.  All 

Work not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective.  THE CONTRACTOR WARRANTS AND 

GUARANTIES THAT IT SHALL COMPLETE THE WORK AND ACHIEVE SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

BY THE SCHEDULED COMPLETION DATE, STRICTLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS CONTRACT. 

DEFECTIVE WORK OR MATERIALS SHALL BE FIXED, REPAIRED OR REPLACED FREE OF CHARGE OR 

COST TO THE CITY. 

 

7.5 PERMITS; FEES; LICENSES 

The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all permits, fees and licenses necessary and ordinary for the Work.  The 

Contractor shall comply with all lawful requirements applicable to the Work and shall give and maintain any and all 

notices required by applicable law pertaining to the Work. 

7.6 SUPERVISION 

7.6.1 The Contractor shall employ and maintain at the Project site only competent supervisory personnel.  Absent 

written instruction from the Contractor to the contrary, the superintendent shall be deemed the Contractor's authorized 



 

 
10 

representative at the site and shall be authorized to receive and accept any and all communications from the City or 

the Engineer. 

7.6.2 Key supervisory personnel assigned by the Contractor to this Project are as follows: 

NAME FUNCTION 

________________________________________________ 

So long as the individuals named above remain actively employed or retained by the Contractor, they shall perform 

the functions indicated next to their names unless the City agrees to the contrary in writing.  In the event one or more 

individuals not listed above subsequently assume one or more of those functions listed above, the Contractor shall be 

bound by the provisions of this Subparagraph 7.6.2 as though such individuals had been listed above. 

7.7 WORK SCHEDULE 

7.7.1 At the pre-construction meeting, the Contractor shall submit to the City and the Engineer for their 

information, the Contractor's schedule for completing the Work (also referred to herein as the construction schedule). 

The Contractor's schedule shall be revised no less frequently than monthly (unless the parties otherwise agree in 

writing) and shall be revised to reflect conditions encountered from time to time and shall be related to the entire 

Project.  Each such revision shall be furnished to the City and the Engineer.  

7.7.2 The Contractor’s schedule for completing the Work and any revised schedules, shall demonstrate 

achievement of substantial completion by the scheduled completion date. Failure by the Contractor to strictly comply 

with the provisions of this Paragraph 7.7 shall constitute a default and a material breach of this Contract. 

7.8 ON-SITE DRAWINGS 

7.8.1 The Contractor shall continuously maintain at the site, for the benefit of the City and the Engineer, one record 

copy of this Contract marked to record on a current basis changes, selections and modifications made during 

construction.  Additionally, the Contractor shall maintain at the site for the City and Engineer the approved Shop 

Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar required submittals.  Upon final completion of the Work, all of 

these record documents shall be delivered to the City. 

 

 

7.9 RECORD DRAWINGS/PLANS, AS-BUILT PLANS, SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES 

7.9.1 The Contractor shall submit, with each Application for Payment, As-Built plans for any and each part or 

portion of the Project that varies from the Engineer’s plans and specifications and the Contract Documents. 

7.9.2 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other submittals from the Contractor do not constitute Contract 

Documents.  Their purpose is merely to demonstrate the manner in which the Contractor intends to implement the 

Work in conformance with information received from the Contract Documents. 

7.9.3 The Contractor shall not perform any portion of the Work requiring submittal and review of Shop Drawings, 

Product Data or Samples unless and until such submittal shall have been approved by the Engineer. Approval by the 

Engineer, however, shall not be evidence that Work installed pursuant thereto conforms to the requirements of this 

Contract. 

 

7.10 CLEANING THE SITE AND THE PROJECT 

7.10.1 The Contractor shall keep the site reasonably clean during performance of the Work.  The Contractor shall 

clean the site and the Project and remove all waste, rubbish, temporary structures, and other materials during 

construction and, upon completion of construction, shall clean the site and remove all such material together with all 

of the Contractor's property therefrom. Contractor shall dispose of all refuse at a landfill approved by the Texas 



 

 
11 

Commission on Environmental Quality. The Contractor shall further restore all property damaged during the 

prosecution of the Work and shall leave the site in a clean and presentable condition. No additional payment shall be 

made by the City for this work, the compensation having been considered and included in the contract price. 

7.11 ACCESS TO WORK AND INSPECTIONS 

7.11.1 The City and the Engineer shall have access to the Work at all times from commencement of the Work 

through final completion.  The Contractor shall take whatever steps necessary to provide access when requested.  

When reasonably requested by the City or the Engineer, the Contractor shall perform or cause to be performed such 

testing as may be necessary or appropriate to insure suitability of the jobsite or the Work’s compliance with the 

Contract requirements. 

7.12 INDEMNITY AND DISCLAIMER 

7.12.1 CITY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE OR RESPONSIBLE FOR, AND SHALL BE 

INDEMNIFIED, DEFENDED, HELD HARMLESS AND RELEASED BY CONTRACTOR 

FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL SUITS, ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, 

OR LIABILITY OF ANY CHARACTER, TYPE, OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING ALL 

EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY OR 

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, INJURY OR LOSS TO ANY PROPERTY, OR ECONOMIC LOSS, 

RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS, INCLUDING THE 

CONTRACTOR, OR PROPERTY, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, OR 

OCCASIONED BY THE PERFORMANCE OF CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS CONTRACT, 

INCLUDING CLAIMS AND DAMAGES ARISING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM THE 

NEGLIGENCE OF CITY, WITHOUT WAIVING THE CITY’S GOVERNMENTAL, 

SOVEREIGN OR OTHER IMMUNITIES OR DEFENSES AVAILABLE TO THE CITY 

UNDER TEXAS LAW AND WITHOUT WAIVING ANY DEFENSES OF THE PARTIES 

UNDER TEXAS LAW. IT IS THE EXPRESS INTENT OF THE PARTIES TO THIS 

CONTRACT THAT THE INDEMNITY PROVIDED FOR HEREIN IS AN INDEMNITY 

EXTENDED BY CONTRACTOR TO INDEMNIFY AND PROTECT CITY FROM THE 

CONSEQUENCES OF THE CONTRACTOR’S AS WELL AS THE CITY'S NEGLIGENCE, 

WHETHER SUCH NEGLIGENCE IS THE SOLE OR PARTIAL CAUSE OF ANY SUCH 

INJURY, DEATH, OR DAMAGE.  

The provisions of this indemnification are solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and not intended to create or grant 

any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person or entity. 

7.12.2 The Contractor will secure and maintain contractual liability insurance to cover this indemnification 

agreement that will be primary and non-contributory as to any insurance maintained by the City for its own benefit, 

including self-insurance.  In addition, Contractor shall obtain and file with City a standard form Certificate of 

Insurance evidencing the required coverage. 

7.12.3 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Paragraph 7.12 by an employee of the 

Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be 

liable, the indemnification obligation under this Paragraph 7.12 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type 

of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers' 

compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts. 



 

 
12 

7.13 NONDISCRIMINATION 

7.13.1 The Contractor shall not discriminate in any way against any person, employee or job applicant on the basis 

of race, color, creed, national original, religion, age, sex, or disability where reasonable accommodations can be 

effected to enable the person to perform the essential functions of the job. The Contractor shall further insure that the 

foregoing nondiscrimination requirement shall be made a part and requirement of each subcontract on this Project. 

7.14 PREVAILING WAGE RATES 

7.14.1 The Contractor shall comply in all respects with all requirements imposed by any laws, ordinances or 

resolutions applicable to the Project with regard to the minimum prevailing wage rates for all classes of employees, 

laborers, subcontractors, mechanics, workmen and persons furnishing labor and services to the Project.  The failure 

of the Contractor to comply with this requirement shall result in the forfeiture to the City of a sum of not less than 

Sixty Dollars ($60.00) for each person per day, or portion thereof, that such person is paid less than the prevailing 

rate.  Upon request by the City, Contractor shall make available for inspection and copying its books and records, 

including but not limited to its payroll records, account information and other documents as may be required by the 

City to insure compliance with this provision. 

7.15 JOB SITE SAFETY PRECAUTIONS 

7.15.1 The Contractor shall at all times exercise reasonable precautions for the safety of its employees, laborers, 

subcontractors, mechanics, workmen and others on and near the jobsite and shall comply with all laws, ordinances, 

regulations, and standards of federal, state and  local safety laws and regulations. The Contractor shall provide such 

machinery guards, safe walk-ways, ladders, bridges, and other safety devices as may be necessary or appropriate to 

insure a safe and secure jobsite and shall require its subcontractors to comply with this requirement. The Contractor 

shall immediately comply with any and all safety requirements imposed by the Engineer during the progress of the 

Work. 

7.16 WARNING DEVICES AND BARRICADES 

 
7.16.1 The Contractor shall furnish and maintain such warning devices, barricades, lights, signs, pavement 

markings, and other devices as may be necessary or appropriate or required by the Engineer to protect persons or 

property in, near or adjacent to the jobsite. No separate compensation shall be paid to the Contractor for such measures.  

Where the Work is being conducted in, upon or near streets, alleys, sidewalks, or other rights-of-way, the Contractor 

shall insure the placement, maintenance and operation of any and all such warning devices as may be required by the 

City and shall do so until no longer required by the City. Such devices shall be in compliance with and conform to the 

manual and specifications for the uniform system of traffic control devices adopted by the Texas Department of 

Transportation. 

 

7.17 PROTECTION OF UTILITIES AND OTHER CONTRACTORS 

7.17.1 The Contractor shall use best efforts to leave undisturbed and uninterrupted all utilities and utility services 

provided to the jobsite or which presently exists at, above or beneath the location where the Work is to be performed.  

In the event that any utility or utility service is disturbed or damaged during the progress of the Work, the Contractor 

shall forthwith repair, remedy or restore the utility at Contractor’s sole expense. The Contractor shall coordinate any 

utility conflicts with the owner of the utility and no extension of time will be requested or given if adequate 

coordination is not provided by Contractor. 

7.17.2 The Contractor understands and acknowledges that other contractors of the City or of other entities may be 

present at the jobsite performing other work unrelated to the Project.  The Contractor shall use best efforts to work 

around other contractors without impeding the work of others while still adhering to the scheduled completion date.  

In the event that the Contractor’s work is or may be delayed by any other person, the Contractor shall immediately 

give notice thereof to the Engineer and shall request a written Change Order in accordance with the procedures set 

forth by this Contract.  The Contractor’s failure to provide such notice and to request such Change Order shall 

constitute a waiver of any and all claims associated therewith. 



 

 
13 

ARTICLE VIII 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

8.1 THE ENGINEER 

8.1.1 When used in this Contract the term “Engineer” does not necessarily denote a duly licensed, trained or 

certified engineer; as used herein, the term shall be used interchangeably and shall mean a designated Engineer, 

Engineer, or Contract Administrator (who may not be an architect or engineer) for the City, said person to be 

designated or re-designated by the City prior to or at any time during the Work hereunder.  The Engineer may be an 

employee of the City or may be retained by the City as an independent contractor but, in either event, the Engineer’s 

duties and authority shall be as set forth hereinafter. The Contractor understands and agrees that it shall abide by the 

decisions and instructions of the Engineer notwithstanding the contractual relationship between the City and Engineer, 

the title of Contract Administrator, or the fact that the Engineer is an employee of the City.  

In the event the City should find it necessary or convenient to replace the Engineer, the City shall retain a replacement 

Engineer and the status of the replacement Engineer shall be that of the former Engineer. 

8.2 ENGINEER'S ADMINISTRATION 

8.2.1 The Engineer, unless otherwise directed by the City in writing, will perform those duties and discharge those 

responsibilities allocated to the Engineer as set forth in this Contract.  The Engineer shall be the City's representative 

from the effective date of this Contract until final payment has been made. 

8.2.2 The City and the Contractor shall communicate with each other in the first instance through the Engineer. 

 

8.2.3 The Engineer shall be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the drawings and specifications and the 

judge of the performance thereunder by the Contractor.  The Engineer shall render written or graphic interpretations 

necessary for the proper execution or progress of the Work with reasonable promptness on request of the Contractor. 

8.2.4 The Engineer will review the Contractor's Applications for Payment and will certify to the City for payment 

to the Contractor, those amounts then due the Contractor as provided in this Contract. 

8.2.5 The Engineer shall have authority to reject Work which is defective or does not conform to the requirements 

of this Contract.  If the Engineer deems it necessary or advisable, the Engineer shall have authority to require additional 

inspection or testing of the Work for compliance with Contract requirements. 

8.2.6 The Engineer will review and approve, or take other appropriate action as necessary, concerning the 

Contractor's submittals including Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples.  Such review, approval or other action 

shall be for the sole purpose of determining conformance with the design concept and information given through the 

Contract Documents. 

8.2.7 The Engineer will prepare Change Orders and may authorize minor changes in the Work by Field Order as 

provided elsewhere herein. 

8.2.8 The Engineer shall, upon written request from the Contractor, conduct inspections to determine the date of 

Substantial Completion and the date of final completion, will receive and forward to the City for the City's review and 

records, written warranties and related documents required by this Contract and will issue a final Certificate for 

Payment upon compliance with the requirements of this Contract. 

8.2.9 The Engineer's decisions in matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent of 

this Contract. 



 

 
14 

8.3 CLAIMS BY THE CONTRACTOR 

8.3.1 The Engineer shall determine all claims and matters in dispute between the Contractor and City with regard 

to the execution, progress, or sufficiency of the Work or the interpretation of the Contract Documents, including but 

not limited to the plans and specifications. Any dispute shall be submitted in writing to the Engineer within seven (7) 

days of the event or occurrence or the first appearance of the condition giving rise to the claim or dispute and the 

Engineer shall render a written decision within a reasonable time thereafter. The Engineer’s decisions shall be final 

and binding on the parties. In the event that either party objects to the Engineer’s determination as to any submitted 

dispute, that party shall submit a written objection to the Engineer and the opposing party within ten (10) days of 

receipt of the Engineer’s written determination in order to preserve the objection. Failure to so object shall constitute 

a waiver of the objection for all purposes. 

8.3.2 Pending final resolution of any claim of the Contractor, the Contractor shall diligently proceed with 

performance of this Contract and the City shall continue to make payments to the Contractor in accordance with this 

Contract. 

8.3.3 CLAIMS FOR CONCEALED, LATENT OR UNKNOWN CONDITIONS - The Contractor expressly represents that it 

has been provided with an adequate opportunity to inspect the Project site and thoroughly review the Contract 

Documents and plans and specifications prior to submission of its bid and the City’s acceptance of the bid. Subject to 

the conditions hereof, Contractor assumes full responsibility and risk for any concealed, latent or unknown condition 

which may affect the Work. No claims for extra work or additional compensation shall be made by Contractor in 

connection with concealed, latent or unknown conditions except as expressly provided herein. Should concealed, 

latent or unknown conditions encountered in the performance of the Work (a) below the surface of the ground or (b) 

in an existing structure be at variance with the conditions indicated by this Contract, or should unknown conditions of 

an unusual nature differing materially from those ordinarily encountered in the area and generally recognized as 

inherent in Work of the character provided for in this Contract, be encountered, the Contract Price shall be equitably 

adjusted by Change Order upon the written notice and claim by either party made within seven (7) days after the first 

observance of the condition. As a condition precedent to the City having any liability to the Contractor for concealed 

or unknown conditions, the Contractor must give the City and the Engineer written notice of, and an opportunity to 

observe, the condition prior to disturbing it. The failure by the Contractor to make the written notice and claim as 

provided in this Subparagraph shall constitute a waiver by the Contractor of any claim arising out of or relating to 

such concealed, latent or unknown condition and the Contractor thereby assumes all risks and additional costs 

associated therewith. 

8.4 EXTRA WORK 

8.4.1 The Contractor shall not claim, request or demand any sum from the City for Extra Work or for additional 

costs, and hereby waives all such claims, requests and demands and any right to assert same, unless the conditions of 

this subparagraph are strictly complied with. “Extra Work” is defined herein to mean any labor, service, materials, 

equipment, supplies or charges that are directly or indirectly related to the Work, the Project or the Project site, that is 

not necessarily or fairly required or implied by the Contract Documents. 

8.4.2 The parties acknowledge and agree that there shall be no payment made by the City to the Contractor without 

a written agreement (either a separate contract or a written Change Order) signed by the parties. Should the Contractor 

perform Extra Work or be requested to perform Extra Work by the Engineer or City, it shall be the Contractor’s 

obligation and duty to first apply for and obtain a written Change Order, approved by the Engineer and executed by 

the City. The Contractor’s failure to obtain a written, signed Change Order prior to commencement of Extra Work 

shall constitute a complete and final waiver of any right for compensation for the Extra Work. 

 

8.5 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COSTS OR TIME; CONTRACT PRICE INCREASE 

8.5.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a claim for an increase in the Contract Price, as a condition precedent to 

any liability of the City therefor, the Contractor shall give the Engineer written notice of such claim within seven (7) 



 

 
15 

days after the occurrence of the event, or the first appearance of the condition, giving rise to such claim.  Such notice 

shall be given by the Contractor before proceeding to execute any additional or changed Work. The failure by the 

Contractor to give such notice and to give such notice prior to executing the Work shall constitute a waiver of any 

right to or claim for additional compensation. 

8.5.2 In connection with any claim by the Contractor against the City for compensation in excess of the Contract 

Price, any liability of the City for the Contractor's costs shall be strictly limited to direct costs incurred by the 

Contractor and shall in no event include indirect costs or consequential damages of the Contractor. The City shall not 

be liable to the Contractor for claims of third parties, including Subcontractors. The City shall not be liable to the 

Contractor for any claims based upon delay to the Contractor for any reason whatsoever including any act or neglect 

on the part of the City. 

8.5.3 If the Contractor is delayed in progressing any task which at the time of the delay is then critical or which 

during the delay becomes critical, as the sole result of any act or neglect to act by the City or someone acting in the 

City's behalf, or by changes ordered in the Work, unusual delay in transportation, unusually adverse weather 

conditions not reasonably anticipated, fire or any causes beyond the Contractor's control, then the date for achieving 

Substantial Completion of the Work shall be extended upon the written notice and claim of the Contractor to the City 

and the Engineer, for such reasonable time as the Engineer may determine.  Any notice and claim for an extension of 

time by the Contractor shall be made not more than seven (7) days after the occurrence of the event or the first 

appearance of the condition giving rise to the claim and shall set forth in detail the Contractor's basis for requiring 

additional time in which to complete the Project.  In the event the delay to the Contractor is a continuing one, only 

one notice and claim for additional time shall be necessary.  If the Contractor fails to make such claim as required in 

this Subparagraph, any claim for an extension of time shall be waived. The procedures and remedies provided by this 

provision shall be the sole remedy of Contractor and Contractor shall not assert nor be entitled to any additional delays 

or damages associated therewith. 

8.6 FIELD ORDERS 

8.6.1 The Engineer shall have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving a change in the Contract 

Price or in Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract.  Such changes shall be effected by Field 

Order and shall be binding upon the Contractor.  The Contractor shall carry out such Field Orders promptly. 

8.7 MEDIATION 

8.7.1 In the event that a dispute arises under the terms of this Contract, following an adverse determination by the 

Engineer and proper preservation of the issue as required herein, the parties agree to submit to mediation. In such 

event, the parties shall agree to a designated person to serve as mediator and each party shall be responsible for 

payment of one-half of the total mediation fees. The parties shall submit the dispute to mediation as soon as practical 

and in no event later than one (1) year after the Engineer’s written decision on the matter. At least one designated 

representative of each party must attend and participate in good faith in an effort to resolve the matters in dispute. 

8.7.2 In no event shall the foregoing provision justify or authorize any delay in the progress of the Work; the parties 

shall abide by the decision of the Engineer in accomplishing the timely completion of the Project. 

 

ARTICLE IX 

SUBCONTRACTORS 

9.1 DEFINITION 

9.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity that has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the 

Work.  No Subcontractor shall be in privity with the City. 



 

 
16 

9.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS 

9.2.1 Upon execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall furnish the City, in writing, the names of persons or 

entities proposed by the Contractor to act as a Subcontractor on the Project. The City shall promptly reply to the 

Contractor, in writing, stating any objections the City may have to such proposed Subcontractor.  The Contractor shall 

not enter into a subcontract with a proposed Subcontractor with reference to whom the City has made timely objection.  

The Contractor shall not be required to subcontract with any party to whom the Contractor has objection. 

9.2.2 All subcontracts shall afford the Contractor rights against the Subcontractor which correspond to those rights 

afforded to the City against the Contractor herein, including those rights afforded to the City by Subparagraph 12.2.1 

below. All subcontracts shall incorporate by reference the provisions hereof and shall provide that no claims, causes 

or demands shall be made by any Subcontractor against the City. 

9.2.3 The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City from and against any and all claims, 

demands, causes of action, damage, and liability asserted or made against the City by or on behalf of any 

Subcontractor. 

 

ARTICLE X 

CHANGES IN THE WORK 

10.1 CHANGES PERMITTED 

10.1.1 Changes in the Work within the general scope of this Contract, consisting of additions, deletions, revisions, 

or any combination thereof, may be ordered without invalidating this Contract, by Change Order or by Field Order. 

10.1.2 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of this Contract and the Contractor shall 

proceed promptly with such changes. 

10.2 CHANGE ORDER DEFINED 

10.2.1 Change Order shall mean a written order to the Contractor executed by the City and the Engineer, issued 

after execution of this Contract, authorizing and directing a change in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price 

or the Contract Time, or any combination thereof. The Contract Price and the Contract Time may be changed only by 

written Change Order. 

10.3 CHANGES IN THE CONTRACT PRICE 

10.3.1 Any change in the Contract Price resulting from a Change Order shall be determined as follows: (a) by mutual 

agreement between the City and the Contractor as evidenced by (1) the change in the Contract Price being set forth in 

the Change Order, (2) such change in the Contract Price, together with any conditions or requirements related thereto, 

being initialed by both parties, and (3) the Contractor's execution of the Change Order, or (b) if no mutual agreement 

occurs between the City and the Contractor, then, as provided in Subparagraph 10.3.2 below. 

10.3.2 If no mutual agreement occurs between the City and the Contractor as contemplated in Subparagraph 10.3.1 

above, the change in the Contract Price, if any, shall then be determined by the Engineer on the basis of the reasonable 

expenditures or savings of those performing, deleting or revising the Work attributable to the change, including, in 

the case of an increase or decrease in the Contract Price, a reasonable allowance for direct job site overhead and profit.  

In such case, the Contractor shall present, in such form and with such content as the City or the Engineer require, an 

itemized accounting of such expenditures or savings, plus appropriate supporting data for inclusion in a Change Order. 

Reasonable expenditures or savings shall be limited to the following: reasonable costs of materials, supplies, or 

equipment including delivery costs, reasonable costs of labor, including social security, old age and unemployment 

insurance, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom, and workers' compensation insurance, reasonable rental 



 

 
17 

costs of machinery and equipment exclusive of hand tools whether rented from the Contractor or others, reasonable 

costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or other taxes related to the Work, and 

reasonable cost of direct supervision and jobsite field office overhead directly attributable to the change.  In no event 

shall any expenditure or savings associated with the Contractor's home office or other non-jobsite overhead expense 

be included in any change in the Contract Price. Pending final determination of reasonable expenditures or savings to 

the City, payments on account shall be made to the Contractor on the Engineer's Certificate for Payment. 

10.3.3 If unit prices are provided in the Contract, and if the quantities contemplated are so changed in a proposed 

Change Order that application of such unit prices to the quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial inequity 

to the City or to the Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 

10.4 MINOR CHANGES 

10.4.1 The Engineer shall have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving a change in the Contract 

Price or an extension of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent of this Contract. Such minor changes 

shall be made by written Field Order, and shall be binding upon the City and the Contractor. The Contractor shall 

promptly carry out such written Field Orders. 

10.5 EFFECT OF EXECUTED CHANGE ORDER 

10.5.1 The execution of a Change Order by the Contractor shall constitute conclusive evidence of the Contractor's 

agreement to the ordered changes in the Work, this Contract as thus amended, the Contract Price and the Contract 

Time. The Contractor, by executing the Change Order, waives and forever releases any claim against the City for 

additional time or compensation for matters relating to or arising out of or resulting from the Work included within or 

affected by the executed Change Order. 

 

ARTICLE XI 

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTING WORK 

11.1 UNCOVERING WORK 

11.1.1 If any of the Work is covered contrary to the Engineer's request or to any provisions of this Contract, it shall, 

if required by the Engineer or the City, be uncovered for the Engineer's inspection and shall be properly replaced at 

the Contractor's expense without change in the Contract Time or Contract Price. 

11.1.2 If any of the Work is covered in a manner consistent with the Engineer’s request or the provisions of this 

Contract, it shall, if required by the Engineer or City, be uncovered for the Engineer's inspection. If such Work 

conforms strictly to this Contract, costs of uncovering and proper replacement shall by Change Order be charged to 

the City.  If such Work does not strictly conform to this Contract, the Contractor shall pay the costs of uncovering and 

proper replacement. 

11.2 CORRECTING WORK 

11.2.1 The Contractor shall immediately proceed to correct Work rejected by the Engineer as defective or failing to 

conform to this Contract.  The Contractor shall pay all costs and expenses associated with correcting such rejected 

Work, including any additional testing and inspections, and reimbursement to the City for the Engineer's services and 

expenses made necessary thereby. 

11.2.2 If within twelve (12) months after Substantial Completion of the Work any of the Work is found to be 

defective or not in accordance with this Contract, the Contractor shall correct it promptly upon receipt of written notice 

from the City.  This obligation shall survive final payment by the City and termination of this Contract.  With respect 

to Work first performed and completed after Substantial Completion, this four year obligation to specifically correct 



 

 
18 

defective and nonconforming Work shall be extended by the period of time which elapses between Substantial 

Completion and completion of the subject Work. 

11.2.3 Nothing contained in this Paragraph 11.2 shall establish any period of limitation with respect to other 

obligations which the Contractor has under this Contract.  Establishment of the twelve (12) month time period in 

Subparagraph 11.2.2 relates only to the duty of the Contractor to specifically correct the Work. 

11.3 CITY MAY ACCEPT DEFECTIVE OR NONCONFORMING WORK 

11.3.1 If the City chooses to accept defective or nonconforming Work, the City may do so at its sole discretion. In 

such event, the Contract Price shall be reduced by the greater of (a) the reasonable cost of removing and correcting 

the defective or nonconforming Work, and (b) the difference between the fair market value of the Project as 

constructed and the fair market value of the Project had it not been constructed in such a manner as to include defective 

or nonconforming Work.  If the remaining portion of the unpaid Contract Price, if any, is insufficient to compensate 

the City for its acceptance of defective or nonconforming Work, the Contractor shall, upon written demand from the 

City, pay the City such remaining compensation for accepting defective or nonconforming Work. 

 

ARTICLE XII 

 

CONTRACT DEFAULT 

AND TERMINATION 

12.1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR 

12.1.1 If the Work is stopped for a period of ninety (90) days by an order of any court or other public authority, or 

as a result of an act of the Government, through no fault of the Contractor or any person or entity working directly or 

indirectly for the Contractor, the Contractor may, upon fifteen (15) days' written notice to the City and the Engineer, 

terminate performance under this Contract and recover from the City payment for the actual reasonable expenditures 

of the Contractor (as limited in Subparagraph 10.3.2 above) for all Work executed and for materials, equipment, tools, 

construction equipment and machinery actually purchased or rented solely for the Work, less any salvage value of any 

such items. 

12.1.2 If the City shall persistently or repeatedly fail to perform any material obligation to the Contractor for a period 

of fifteen (15) days after receiving written notice from the Contractor of its intent to terminate hereunder, the City 

shall have fifteen (15) days to remedy its failure and if not so cured, the Contractor may terminate performance under 

this Contract by written notice to the Engineer and the City.  In such event, the Contractor shall be entitled to recover 

from the City as though the City had terminated the Contractor's performance under this Contract for convenience 

pursuant to Subparagraph 12.2.1 hereunder. 

12.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY 

12.2.1 FOR CONVENIENCE 

12.2.1.1 The City may for any reason whatsoever terminate performance under this Contract by the Contractor for 

convenience.  The City shall give written notice of such termination to the Contractor specifying when termination 

becomes effective. 

12.2.1.2 The Contractor shall incur no further obligations in connection with the Work and the Contractor shall stop 

Work when such termination becomes effective. The Contractor shall also terminate outstanding orders and 

subcontracts.  The Contractor shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts and 

orders.  The City may direct the Contractor to assign the Contractor's right, title and interest under terminated orders 

or subcontracts to the City or its designee. 



 

 
19 

12.2.1.3 The Contractor shall transfer title and deliver to the City such completed or partially completed Work and 

materials, equipment, parts, fixtures, information and Contract rights as the Contractor has. 

12.2.1.4 (a) The Contractor shall submit a termination claim to the City and the Engineer specifying the amounts 

due because of the termination for convenience together with costs, pricing or other data required by 

the Engineer.  If the Contractor fails to file a termination claim within one (1) year from the effective 

date of termination, the City shall pay the Contractor, an amount derived in accordance with 

subparagraph (c) below. 

(b) The City and the Contractor may agree to the compensation, if any, due to the Contractor hereunder. 

 

(c) Absent agreement to the amount due to the Contractor, the City shall pay the Contractor the following 

amounts: 

(i) Contract prices for labor, materials, equipment and other services accepted under this Contract; 

(ii) Reasonable costs incurred in preparing to perform and in performing the terminated portion of the 

Work, and in terminating the Contractor's performance, plus a fair and reasonable allowance for 

overhead and profit thereon (such profit shall not include anticipated profit or consequential 

damages), provided however, that if it appears that the Contractor would have not profited or 

would have sustained a loss if the entire Contract would have been completed, no profit shall be 

allowed or included and the amount of compensation shall be reduced to reflect the anticipated 

rate of loss, if any; 

(iii) Reasonable costs of settling and paying claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts or 

orders pursuant to Subparagraph 12.2.1.2 of this Paragraph.  These costs shall not include amounts 

paid in accordance with other provisions hereof. 

12.2.1.5 The total sum to be paid the Contractor under this Subparagraph 12.2.1 shall not exceed the total Contract 

Price, as properly by amounts withheld by the City and reduced by the amount of payments otherwise made, and shall 

in no event include duplication of payment. 

12.2.2 FOR CAUSE 

12.2.2.1 The following constitute grounds for termination of this Contract by the City: 

 (a) the Contractor’s failure or refusal to prosecute the Work in a timely manner; 

 (b) The Contractor abandons the jobsite and fails to resume work within five (5) days of written notice 

thereof by the City; 

 (c) the Contractor fails to meet milestones or comply with approved construction schedules; 

 (d) the Contractor fails to grant or allow access to the jobsite by the City or Engineer; 

 (e) the Contractor fails to supply enough properly skilled workers, supervisory personnel or proper 

equipment or materials; 

 (f) the Contractor fails to make prompt payment to Subcontractors or for materials or labor; 

 (g) the Contractor persistently disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public 

authority having jurisdiction; or, 

 (h) the Contractor is otherwise guilty of a violation of a material provision of this Contract. 



 

 
20 

In the event of the occurrence of any one or more of the above events, the City may by written notice to the Contractor, 

without prejudice to any other right or remedy, terminate the employment of the Contractor, exclude the Contractor 

from the job site, and take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and 

machinery thereon owned by the Contractor and may finish the Work by whatever methods it may deem expedient.  

In such case, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is finished. 

12.2.2.2 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price does not exceed the cost of finishing the work, including 

compensation for the Engineer's additional services and expenses made necessary thereby, such difference shall be 

paid by the Contractor to the City.  This obligation for payment shall survive the termination of the Contract. 

12.2.2.3 In the event the employment of the Contractor is terminated by the City for cause pursuant to Subparagraph 

12.2.2 and it is subsequently determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction that such termination was without cause, 

such termination shall thereupon be deemed a Termination for Convenience under Subparagraph 12.2.1 and the 

provisions of Subparagraph 12.2.1 shall apply. 

12.3 USE OF THIRD-PARTY OVERSIGHT OR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 

12.3.1 Should the City allow the Contractor to continue its performance of Work notwithstanding an event of default 

specified in Subparagraph 12.2.2.1, or should there be an imminent potential of default, the City, at its sole option and 

within its sole discretion, may retain a third-party construction manager to document the events of default and oversee 

further progress of the Work.  The use of a third-party construction manager shall not prevent the City from declaring 

the Contractor to be in default and the City may, at its sole option and within its sole discretion, terminate this Contract 

at any time.  Should the City retain a third-party construction manager, the costs thereof shall be withheld from any 

amounts due Contractor upon termination.  The City’s exercise of this option shall be without prejudice to any other 

right or remedy available to the City by law or under this Contract. 

ARTICLE XIII 

INSURANCE 

 

13.1 CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN INSURANCE 

13.1.1 The Contractor at its own expense shall purchase, maintain and keep in force during the life of this contract, 

adequate insurance that will protect the Contractor and/or any Additional Insured from claims which may arise out of 

or result from operations under this Contract. The insurance required shall provide adequate protections from all 

claims, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by any Additional Insured or by any Subcontractor or by 

anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone whose acts of any of them may be liable and 

from any special hazards, such as blasting, which may be encountered in the performance of this contract in the 

amounts as shown below in Paragraph 13.2.1. 

13.1.2 The Contractor shall not commence work on any Contract in the City until the Contractor has obtained all 

the insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the City. 

13.2 TYPES AND AMOUNTS OF CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE 

13.2.1. The Contractor shall furnish and maintain during the life of the contract adequate Worker's Compensation 

and Commercial General Liability (Public) Insurance in such amounts as follows: 

Type of Insurance  Amount 

Worker's Compensation As set forth in the Worker's Compensation Act. 

Commercial General $1,000,000 Each Accident/Occurrence. 

 

Liability (Public)  $1,000,000 Aggregate 

 $1,000,000 Products & 



 

 
21 

 Completed Operations 

 Aggregate. 

 

City’s Protective $600,000 per occurrence 

Liability Insurance $1,000,000 aggregate 

 

Excess/Umbrella Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence  

  w/drop down coverage 

 

Endorsement CG 2503 Amendment Aggregate 

   Limit of Insurance per 

   Project or City's and 

    Contractor's Protective 

   Liability Insurance for the  

   Project. 

 

Automobile Liability $500,000 Combined 

   single limit per 

   occurrence. 

 

13.3 ADDITIONAL INSURED 

13.3.1 The City and the Engineer shall be named as an additional insured on the Commercial General Liability 

(Public), City’s Protective Liability, and Excess/Umbrella Liability Insurance Policies furnished by the Contractor. 

13.4 WRITTEN NOTIFICATION 

13.4.1 Each insurance policy shall contain a provision requiring that thirty (30) days prior to expiration, cancellation, 

non-renewal or any material change in coverage, a notice there of shall be given by certified mail to the City of Lucas, 

Attention:  Stanton Foerster, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002-7651.  

13.5 PREMIUMS AND ASSESSMENTS; SUBROGATION 

13.5.1 Companies issuing the insurance policies shall have no recourse against the City for payment of any 

premiums or assessments for any deductibles which are at the sole responsibility and risk of the Contractor. Insurance 

Companies shall have no right of subrogation against the City or the Engineer. 

13.6 CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

13.6.1 Proof that the insurance is in force shall be furnished to the City on Standard Certificate of Insurance Forms.  

In the event any insurance policy shown on the Certificate of Insurance has an expiration date that is prior to the 

completion and final acceptance of the project by the City, the contractor shall furnish the City proof of identical 

continued coverage no later than thirty(30) days prior to the expiration date shown on the Certificate of Insurance. 

13.7 PRIMARY COVERAGE 

13.7.1 The coverages provided herein shall be primary and noncontributory with any other insurance maintained by 

the City, for its benefit, including self-insurance. 

13.8 WORKER’S COMPENSATION INSURANCE COVERAGE 

 
13.8.1 The Contractor shall: 

 

(1) provide coverage for its employees providing services on a project, for the duration of the project based on 

proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements; 

 



 

 
22 

(2) provide a certificate of coverage showing workers' compensation coverage to the governmental entity prior 

to beginning work on the project; 

 

(3) provide the governmental entity prior to the end of the coverage period, a new certificate of coverage 

showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the contractor's current certificate of 

coverage ends during the duration of the project; 

 

(4) obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the governmental entity: 

 

(A) a certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the governmental entity 

will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage for all persons providing services on the 

project; and 

(B) no later than seven days after receipt by the contractor, a new certificate of coverage showing extension 

of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the 

duration of the Project; 

 

(5) retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for one year thereafter; 

 

(6) notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after the 

contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of 

any person providing services on the project; 

 

(7) post a notice on each project site informing all persons providing services on the project that they are required 

to be covered, and stating how a person may verify current coverage and report failure to provide coverage.  

This notice shall comply with the requirements established by the Division of Workers Compensation of the 

Texas Department of Insurance, or its successor agency. 

 

and 

 

(8) contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a project, to: 

 

(A) provide coverage based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing 

of any coverage agreements for all of its employees providing services on the project, for the 

duration of the project; 

 

(B) provide a certificate of coverage to the contractor prior to that person beginning work on the project; 

 

(C) provide the Contractor, prior to the end of the coverage period, a new certificate of coverage showing 

extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends 

during the duration of the project; 

 

(D) obtain from each other person with whom it contracts, and provide to the Contractor: 

 

(i) a certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the project; and 

 

(ii) prior to the end of the coverage period, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of 

the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends 

during the duration of the project; 

 

(E) retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for one year 

thereafter; 

 

(F) notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after 

the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of 

coverage of any person providing services on the project; and 

 



 

 
23 

(G) contractually require each other person with whom it contracts, to perform as required by sub-

paragraphs (A) - (G) of this paragraph, with the certificate of coverage to be provided to the person 

for whom they are providing services. 

 

 

ARTICLE XIV 

MISCELLANEOUS 

14.1 LAWS AND ORDINANCES 

 

14.1.1 The Contractor shall at all times and in all respects observe and comply with all federal, state and local laws, 

ordinances, and regulations applicable to the Project and Work.  The Contractor shall further insure that all 

Subcontractors observe and comply with said laws, ordinances and regulations. 

14.2 GOVERNING LAW 

14.2.1 The Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.  Exclusive venue for any causes of action 

arising under the terms or provisions of this Contract or the Work to be performed hereunder shall be in the state 

courts of Collin County, Texas. 

14.3 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

14.3.1 The City and Contractor bind themselves, their successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party 

hereto and to successors, assigns and legal representatives of such other party in respect to covenants, agreements and 

obligations contained in this Contract. The Contractor shall not assign this Contract without written consent of the 

City. 

14.5 FORCE MAJEURE 

14.5.1 As used herein, “force majeure” means an incident, situation, or act of a third party that is beyond a party’s 

reasonable control such as an act of God, an act of the public enemy, strikes or other labor disturbances (other than 

strikes within such party’s own labor force), hurricanes, earthquakes, fires, floods, epidemics, embargoes, war, and 

riots. The Contractor will not be liable or responsible for its failure to perform any obligation under this Contract 

because of an event of Force Majeure, provided, however, that the Contractor submits notice thereof to the City and 

Engineer within seven (7) days of such an event, obtains a written Change Order, signed by all parties, that allows an 

extension of the scheduled completion date, and identifies the specific causes and number of days in the Statement of 

Delay submitted with the next ensuing Application for Payment. Notwithstanding, if the Contractor’s failure to 

perform continues for more than twenty (20) calendar days, the City may at its option terminate this Agreement 

immediately and pursue such rights and remedies as may be allowed under Subparagraph 12.2.2 of this Contract. 

14.6 IMMUNITIES; DEFENSES 

14.6.1 Nothing in this Contract shall be deemed to waive any immunity, sovereign, governmental, official, qualified 

or otherwise, from liability or suit, which the City may have or assert, except as may be provided by law, all such 

immunities being hereby expressly retained.   

14.7 NO RIGHTS IN THIRD PARTIES 

14.7.1 The indemnification provisions of this Contract and the rights and remedies afforded herein are solely for the 

benefit of the parties to this Contract. Nothing in this Contract is intended nor shall be construed to grant, create or 

confer any right, benefit, interest or cause of action in any person not a party to this Contract, or to the public in 

general. 



 

 
24 

14.8 SEVERABILITY 

14.8.1 The provisions of this Contract are herein declared to be severable; in the event that any term, provision or 

part hereof is determined to be invalid, void or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity or 

enforceability of the remaining terms, provisions and parts, and this Contract shall be read as if the invalid, void or 

unenforceable portion had not been included herein. 

14.9 AMENDMENTS; NO WAIVER 

14.9.1 This Contract may be amended by the parties only by a written agreement duly executed by both parties.  The 

failure of the City to object to any nonperformance or nonconforming work or to enforce any provision hereof shall 

in no event be regarded as or construed to be a waiver, release or modification of any term or provision in this Contract, 

nor shall such failure to object or enforce estop the City from insisting on strict compliance with this Contract or from 

recovering damages, costs or expenses arising as a result of such nonperformance or nonconforming work. 

14.10 NOTICES 

14.10.1 All notices required by this Contract shall be in writing and presumed received when deposited in the mail 

properly addressed to the other party or Engineer at the address set forth herein or set forth in a written designation of 

change of address delivered to all parties and the Engineer. 

 EXECUTED in single or multiple originals, this _____ day of ______________, 2014. 

CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS   CONTRACTOR: 

 

       Pave-It, Inc. 

 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Rebecca Mark      (Signature) 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 

       (Type/Print Name) 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC    (Type/Print Title) 

City Secretary 

       ____________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    (Street Address)     

 

       ____________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

Joe Gorfida, Jr.     (City/State/Zip) 

City Attorney 



Item No. 06 

 
 

 
 
Name & Title of Requestor: Joseph Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 

Agenda Item:   
 
Discuss and consider the approval of Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 amending the 
City of Lucas Code of Ordinances by amending Chapter 5 titled “Fire Prevention 
and Protecting” by amending Article 5.03 “Fire Code” by amending Section 
3301.1.3 of the International Fire Code 2003 Edition to prohibit the use of fireworks 
within 5,000 feet outside the City Limits of the City of Lucas. 
 

Background Information:   
 
At the May 15, 2014 regular City Council meeting, Fire Marshal Jason Browning 
gave a presentation regarding the current conditions and the impact to the safety and 
welfare of the public as it relates to the risk of fire for the upcoming Fourth of July 
holiday. 
 
The Lucas City Council discussed the safety of its residents and requested that staff 
continue to evaluate the City’s authority to regulate the igniting of fireworks within 
5,000 feet of its city limits.  The use of fireworks increases the risk of fire and in 
light of our current drought-related conditions, the City Council would be 
proactively reducing the risk of fire. 

 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 will be provided separately from the packet. 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:   
 

N/A 

City of Lucas 

Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 



Item No. 06 

 

Recommendation:   
 
Staff recommends allowing the sale of fireworks during the 2014 Fourth of July 
season but NOT permitting the use of fireworks this season.  If requested to do so, 
staff will bring forward an additional ordinance to prohibit the sale of fireworks at 
the July 17, 2014 City Council meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 5 
Approved: JUNE 5, 2014  - 1 - 
   

 
 

ORDINANCE # 2014-06-00782 
[AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 5] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 5 “FIRE PREVENTION 
AND PROTECTION” BY AMENDING ARTICLE 5.03 “FIRE CODE”  BY 
AMENDING SECTION 5.03.002, AMENDMENTS TO THE 2003 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, BY AMENDING SECTION 3301.1.3 
“FIREWORKS” BY PROVIDING REGULATIONS PROHIBITING THE USE 
OF FIREWORKS WITHIN 5,000 FEET OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS; PROVIDING 
A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 217.042 of the Texas Local Government Code permits a city to prohibit 
any nuisance within the limits of the municipality and within 5,000 feet outside the limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lucas currently prohibits the possession, manufacture, storage, sale, 
handling and use of fireworks within the City limits but does not extend the regulations to within 
5,000 feet outside the limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lucas finds that the use of fireworks within 5,000 
feet outside the City limits is a nuisance and finds that it is in the best interest of the City to 
prohibit the use of fireworks within 5,000 feet outside the City limits; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LUCAS: 
 
Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same is, 
hereby amended by amending Chapter 5 “Fire Prevention and Protection”, by amending Article 
5.03 “Fire Code” by amending Section 3301.1.3 “Fireworks”,  to read as follows: 

 
“CHAPTER 5 

FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 
 

. . .  
 

ARTICLE 5.03   FIRE CODE 
 
. . .  

 
Section 3301.1.3 Fireworks.  The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of 

Annexation 
Disannexation 
Code of Ordinances 
Other 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 5 
Approved: JUNE 5, 2014  - 2 - 
   

fireworks are prohibited within the city limits.  The use of fireworks is also prohibited within 
5,000 feet outside the city limits. 
 Exceptions: 
 
 1. Only when approved for fireworks displays, storage and handling of fireworks as 

 provided in sections 3304 and 3308. 
 
 2. The use of fireworks for approved display as permitted in Section 3308. 
 
 3. The sale of fireworks shall be permitted within 5,000 feet outside the city limits. 
 
. . . ” 
 
Section 2. All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions 
of said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of 
this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 5. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the City of Lucas Code of 
Ordinances, as amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum 
of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000) for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall 
continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 6. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE, 2014. 
 
       
       



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2014-06-00782 AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 5 
Approved: JUNE 5, 2014  - 3 - 
   

      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Rebecca Mark, Mayor  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Kathy Wingo, TRMC, MMC, City Secretary 
(03-18-14/66377) 

 
 



Item No. 07 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Joe Hilbourn, Development Services Director 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Consent and approve an application for a preliminary plat for a parcel of land 
situated in ABS A 0349 John Gray Survey, Tract 10, being a 30.6018± acres, 
located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Highland Drive and Stinson 
Road. 
 

Background Information:  
 
The Estates at Stinson Highlands is currently in the city’s ETJ. There is an 
approved development agreement that gives consideration to annexation, zoning, 
number of lots, and special conditions. The development agreements lists R-1 for 
consideration for zoning, must annex within ten days of final plat approval plus 
special conditions. 

1. Lot size minimum one acre, with a minimum of `150’ of road frontage. 
2. Setbacks: 50’ front, 30’ rear, 20’ each side (or ten percent of lot width 

whichever is less) 
3. Accessory building not to exceed 50% of the first floor air conditioned space 

of the main residence, must be made of the same materials as the main 
residence and must be behind the main residence. 

 
There is an approved concept plan that is part of the approved development 
agreement. The plat submitted substantially conforms to the approved concept 
plan. The only difference is the straight away were given curves to add character. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1. Estates at Stinson Highlands Preliminary Plat 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 



Item No. 07 

Eventually this development will add 22 rooftops to the tax roll. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
This is an administrative approval, the plat meets or exceeds the city’s minimum 
requirements. 
 
 







Item No. 08 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Discuss and consider the approval of contracting with Collin County Elections 
Administration to conduct any and all future elections for the City of Lucas. 
 

Background Information:  
 
The May 10, 2014 Special Election was completed recently, with 567 registered 
voters casting a vote.  During the Early Voting city staff conducted the election and 
on Election Day 5 individuals were hired to conduct the election.  While the past 
elections have been conducted by the City it is becoming more and more apparent 
that staff will no longer be able to help with the election and keep up with their 
dedicated duties.  There were times during this past election that it put an undue 
burden on staff just to keep all positions covered while voting was going on. 
 
During Early Voting, staff processed 351 voters.  73 of 351 voters inquired why it 
was necessary to go to two different locations to cast their ballots for the city and 
school elections.  Early Voting Clerks made sure that each voter who came in to 
cast their ballot in the city’s election were told where they could go to cast their 
ballot in the school’s election as well. 
 
The City of Lucas was one of two entities who did not contract with Collin County 
Elections Administration for the May 2014 Special Election, the other entity being 
Blue Ridge ISD. 
 
Collin County Elections Administration has been doing “vote centers” during 
election periods.  This allows any Collin County resident to vote at any of the 
polling locations throughout the county.  When Collin County Elections 
Administration conducts the elections voters are able to go to any polling location 
within the county to cast their ballot.  This is such a convenience to the voter and 
should prove to get more people out to vote. 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 



Item No. 08 

 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The November 2013 Local Option Election, conducted by Collin County Elections 
Administration, cost $5,579.08. 
 
The May 2014 Special Election, conducted by the City, cost $5,559.10.  This does 
not include normal business hours when employees were away from their desks 
covering the polling location and the impact to the organization.  It proved to be 
difficult at times to cover the polling location with the amount of work staff is 
presently doing. 
 

Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends contracting with Collin County Elections Administration for any 
and all future elections. 











































To
w
n

In
 C
it
y 

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n

P
ai
d
 F
u
ll‐
Ti
m
e
 

Fi
re
fi
gh
te
rs

P
ai
d
 P
ar
t‐
Ti
m
e
 

Fi
re
fi
gh
te
rs

H
o
w
 M

an
y 

V
o
lu
n
te
er
s

O
p
e
ra
te
 O
w
n
 

A
m
b
u
la
n
ce

C
al
ls
 f
o
r 

Se
rv
ic
e
 in

 F
Y
 

2
0
1
3

Sa
la
ry
 B
u
d
ge
t

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

B
u
d
ge
t

To
ta
l O

p
e
ra
ti
n
g 

B
u
d
ge
t 
W
/O

 

C
ap

it
al

Lu
ca
s

5
,8
7
2

7
0

5
0

(S
ee

 N
o
te
 1
) 
  

N
o

3
8
9

$
2
0
7
,5
2
0
.0
0

$
7
5
5
,3
0
7
.0
0

$
6
8
2
,2
0
7
.0
0

M
el
is
sa
 

7
,0
0
0

2
7

3
0

N
o

7
7
5

$
2
7
0
,6
4
8
.0
0

$
5
7
5
,8
8
7
.0
0

$
5
7
5
,8
8
7
.0
0

Fa
ir
vi
ew

8
,2
0
0

1
1

1
8

2
4

N
o

7
6
8

$
1
,1
0
0
,0
0
0
.0
0

$
1
,9
0
0
,0
0
0
.0
0

$
1
,9
0
0
,0
0
0
.0
0

Fa
te

9
,8
3
2

(S
ee

 N
o
te
 2
) 
   

1
1
 P
SO

'S
1

1
8

N
o

5
1
6
 (
Fi
re
 

O
n
ly
 C
al
ls
)

$
9
0
0
,0
0
0
.0
0

$
1
,0
5
2
,0
0
0
.0
0

$
6
0
0
,0
0
0
.0
0

A
n
n
a

9
,3
6
0

5
3

3
0

N
o

1
7
0

$
4
3
6
,0
0
0
.0
0

$
6
2
4
,0
0
0
.0
0

$
6
2
2
,0
0
0
.0
0

M
u
rp
h
y

1
8
,9
6
0

1
8

0
0

Ye
s

1
2
5
0

$
1
5
7
,5
0
0
.0
0

$
7
1
8
,2
6
0
.0
0

$
3
1
0
,7
0
0
.0
0

Sa
ch
se

2
1
,5
9
6

1
8

2
2

0
Ye
s

1
4
0
6

$
1
,7
7
5
,8
7
1
.0
0

$
2
,2
7
4
,8
3
9
.0
0

U
n
kn
o
w
n

W
yl
ie

4
4
,2
6
7

4
3

6
0

Ye
s

3
8
7
4

$
5
,0
7
0
,0
9
6
.0
0

$
5
,8
3
5
,6
0
9
.0
0

$
5
,7
1
3
,6
7
1
.0
0

P
ar
ke
r

4
,1
1
1

0
0

4
1

N
o

2
5
0

$
4
1
,9
0
0
.0
0
 

B
u
d
ge
te
d
 

St
ip
e
n
d
 f
o
r 

vo
lu
n
te
e
rs

$
2
2
5
,0
0
0
.0
0

$
2
2
5
,0
0
0
.0
0

P
ri
n
ce
to
n

7
,4
4
0

1
0

3
0

N
o

1
3
8
5

$
6
7
,0
0
0
.0
0

$
2
0
5
,4
0
0
.0
0

$
4
6
,1
1
2
.0
0

P
ro
sp
e
r

1
4
,0
0
0

2
1

5
7

Ye
s

1
0
6
5

$
1
,6
3
0
,0
5
0
.0
0

$
2
,3
6
2
,4
4
0
.0
0

$
2
,3
5
5
,4
4
0
.0
0

Su
n
n
yv
al
e

5
,4
9
3

(S
ee

 N
o
te
 3
) 
   

3
0

3
4

Ye
s

5
9
0

$
3
3
5
,5
7
0
.0
0

$
6
1
1
,1
3
4
.0
0

$
5
8
7
,9
0
0
.0
0

H
e
at
h
‐ 
O
n
ly
 h
as
 a
 

D
e
p
t.
 o
f 
P
u
b
lic
 

Sa
fe
ty

7
,6
3
3

1
8

1
5

N
o

3
8
5
 (
Fi
re
 a
n
d
 

EM
S 
C
al
ls
)

$
1
,6
9
9
,7
4
7
.0
0

$
2
,2
6
5
,5
1
8
.0
0

$
2
,2
1
8
,2
9
6
.0
0

N
O
TE
S:

   
   
   
   
   
 1
).
  B
e
ga
n
 A
m
b
u
la
n
ce
 S
er
vi
ce
 in

 O
ct
o
b
er
 o
f 
2
0
1
4

   
   
   
   
   
2
).
   
P
SO

 ‐
 P
u
b
li
c 
Sa
fe
ty
 O
ff
ic
er
s

   
   
   
   
   
3
).
  H

ir
in
g 
3
 f
u
ll
ti
m
e 
Fi
re
fi
gh

te
rs
 n
o
w
 w
il
l h
ir
e 
3
 m

o
re
 f
u
ll
ti
m
e 
Fi
re
fi
gh

te
rs
 b
y 
th
e 
e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e 
su
m
m
er

Lo
ca
l F
ir
e
 D
e
p
ar
tm

e
n
t 
St
at
is
ti
cs
 F
o
r 
FY
 2
0
1
3























































































































Item No. 10 

 
 

Name & Title of Requestor: Kathy Wingo – City Secretary 
 

Agenda Item:  
 
Adjournment. 
 

Background Information:  
 
N/A 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 

Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation:  
 
N/A 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: June 5, 2014 


	00 cc-20140605 regular agenda
	00 Attendance sheet
	01 oaths of office cs
	02 mayor pro tem cs
	03 citizens input cs
	04 community interest cs
	05a minutes cs
	05a cc-20140515 council minutes
	05a cc-20140517 special council minutes
	05b Pavit agreement cs
	05b PAVEIT-F
	06 nuisance cs
	07 estates at stinson highlands cs
	07 esh pp pg 1
	07 esh pp pg 2
	08 contract for election cs
	9a Fire Rescue Workshop
	9b Fire Rescue Workshop
	9c Fire Rescue Workshop
	9d Fire Rescue Workshop
	9e Fire Rescue Workshop
	9f Fire Rescue Workshop
	9g Fire Rescue Workshop
	10 adjournment cs

